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Corporate Profile
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) represent
the largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacture in China.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturer of high-
end knitwear on an OEM basis. The Group was also the largest
exporter of knitwear and the largest PRC garment supplier to Japan
according to the 2006 to 2008 reports on the development of
China’s garment industry and the 2006 to 2008 annual reports on
China’s international trade in textiles and clothing.

With the production base located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and garment factories strategically set
up in Quzhou and Anging of China and Cambodia, the Group also
established sales offices or branch offices in Shanghai, Hong Kong
and Osaka. Currently, the Group had over 42,000 employees and
the area of the factories spans across 1,300,000 sg.m., which can
produce various knitwear of over 160 million pieces per year.

With the focus on producing causal wear, the Group also extended
to sports wear in recent years, with the major international renowned
sports wear clients including NIKE, ADIDAS and PUMA. The market
is also extended from Japan to Asia Pacific, Europe and the US
market.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included as the Constituent Stock of Hang Seng Composite Index,
Hang Seng Composite Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang
Seng Composite SmallCap Index, effective from 8 March 2010.

2 FAJ B B 2 @2 Ak 5 PR A B] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST

FIVE YEARS

BZE+-A=+t-BLEE/R+=-A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—EEN\F —ETLF —ETRF —ZETREF
2008 2007 2006 2005
TERKER Key Financial Information
(AR¥Fr) (RMB’000)
HERE Sales 4,822 596 3,655,613 2,979,530 2,482,984
B BT {5 B A1 8 Profit before income tax 757,420 401,736 409,247 355,774
FEFE Profit for the year 700,452 408,088 390,246 353,345
ADAREREA Profit attributable to equity
EERE holders of the Company 699,380 406,882 389,031 351,487
FRBEE Non-current assets 2,619,575 2,208,185 1,821,114 1,330,951
MBEE Current assets 1,701,676 1,700,735 972,592 1,209,590
B E Current liabilities 1,373,905 1,331,079 719,390 826,367
RBEEFE Net current assets 327,771 369,656 253,202 383,223
BEE Total assets 4,321,251 3,903,920 2,793,706 2,540,541
BEERTDER Total assets less current liabilities 2,947,346 2,572,841 2,074,316 1,714,174
BER Total equity 2,872,973 2,480,632 2,074,316 1,714,174
BeRALEED Cash and cash equivalents 238,141 233,384 273,994 559,801
TEHHILE Key Financial ratios
EFE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 23.8 22.3 21.4 23.1
SFH = (%) Net profit margin (%) 14.5 11.1 13.1 14.2
BRBELE %) Net gearing ratio (%) 20.6 22.8 2.1 (0.1)
ML & Current ratio 1.2 1.3 1.4 15
R ZEESH () Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 31 26 24 21
FEZEEH(B) Inventory turnover period (days) 71 72 62 62
Bt Notes:
1. BARABGBHEZHEARERNIREsRE 1. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (less

SEBYREER K

cash and cash equivalents) and total equity.
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Financial Highlights

BEmBHINNEERE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
PRODUCT CATEGORIES

BEt-A=t-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
—EENE e 3 ZZTRE —EThE
2008 2007 2006 2005
ARETR % ARETR % ARETRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

RER By products
NGEES Casual wear 2,398,304 49.7 2,248,981 61.5 2,374,491 79.7 2,028,015 81.7
BERE Sports wear 2,042,315 42.3 1,165,198 31.9 463,607 15.6 230,478 9.3
MK k% Lingerie 248,929 5.2 147,920 4.0 35,577 1.2 - -
Htitim Other knitting
products 133,048 2.8 93,514 2.6 105,855 3.5 224,491 9.0

HEE A Total sales 4,822,596  100.0  3,655613 1000 2,979,530 100.0 2,482,984  100.0

42.3% 42.3% 31.9%
8.6% 5.2% 4.0%
2.6% 2.8% 2.6%
46.5% 49.7% 61.5%
15.6 9.3%
1.2% 9.0%
3.5% 81.7%
® kERE 79.7%
Casual wear
O EYPRE
Sports wear
AR AR 5%
Lingerie

O Hibdtsham
Other knitting products

4 RN BB £ @45 A% B BR A &) Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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BEhmEosmomNEEsE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION
BE+-A=t-BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—TENE ZTTLEF ZTERE —TTHE
2008 2007 2006 2005
AREFT % AREFT % AREFT % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
BW5 By regions
e International sales
AR Japan 2437304 505 2,178,725 596 2,250,287 755 2,017,248 812
B Europe 751442 156 515602 141 339,337 114 159,341 6.4
ESJE us 261,079 5.4 298,830 8.2 105,627 3.6 79,418 3.2
HiBER Other countries 455,497 9.5 268,112 7.3 105,121 35 42,716 1.8
BNHE Domestic sales 917,274 19.0 394,344 108 179,158 6.0 184,261 7.4
HERA Total sales 4,822,596 1000 3,655,613 100.0 2,979,530 100.0 2,482,984  100.0
—BTRE —BBN\F —BRLE
2009 15.3% 2008 15.6% 2007 14.1%
5.6% 5.4% 8.2%
8.7% 9.5% 73%
17.9% 19.0% 10.8%
52.5% 50.5% 59.6%

—EERE
2006
11.4%
® a8x
Japan 3.6%
O BM 35%
Europe
6.0%
E=
us 75.5%
O H#ER
Other countries
@ ERHE

Domestic sales

—EERE

2005 6.4%
3.2%
1.8%
74%
81.2%

@)

Annual Report 09 F



NI
Corporate Information
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
RN B AR A A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chen Zhongjing

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Mr. Dai Xiangbo

Mr. Su Shounan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

6 FAJ B B 2 @2 Ak 5 PR A B] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



Corporate Information
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

EBEEME
BANE

RIS E8%
BRES
271E2708F

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Dai Xiangbo (Chairman)

Mr. Su Shounan

Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Ma Renhe (Chairman)
Mr. Su Shounan

Mr. Dai Xiangbo

Nomination Committee

Mr. Huang Guanlin (Chairman)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Mr. Dai Xiangbo

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Annual Report 09 #F ¥R
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Corporate Information
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ROBFETRE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, KYI-1106

ROBFELEERBDE

ERRRBSFEFLAERAA
BBET

2R ABR183
B
17181712-1716%

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISER

Troutman Sanders Solicitors and International Lawyers
Rowdget W. Young & Company

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, KYI-1106

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

8 FAJ B B 2 @2 Ak 5 PR A B] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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2313

Corporate Information

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313
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Chairman’s Statement
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To: All Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to announce the
annual results of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) in 2009. All
shareholders are most welcome to review the results.

2009 is the most difficult year in the development history of the
textile garment industry in China. Affected by the insufficient foreign
market demand, the export turnover has dropped for the first time
for years. Under the stringent economic circumstances, the Group
has continued to maintain optimal growth in terms of sales income
and operating results. In particular, | would like to share with all
shareholders that the Group has managed to make better results
in terms of energy-saving, emission reduction, lean production
management, production base layout and product structure
adjustment, which has laid a more solid foundation for persistent
and healthy development in the future. | am most delighted that the
Group has obtained prominent results during the year. In this aspect,
I would like to express my thanks for the great efforts made by all
levels of management staff and all employees during the whole year
and hope that all employees will strive harder together with greater
confidence for a brighter future. It is also hoped that our investors
are in a position to recognize the achievements secured by the

Group and continue to support our development strategies.

X A] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2009, the financial performance
of the Group was positive with an annual turnover of approximately
RMB6,093,485,000, representing an increase of 26.4% as compared
to 2008. Profits attributable to equity holders for the year ended
31 December 2009 has risen 79.0% to RMB1,252,030,000 from
RMB699,380,000 in the previous year ended 31 December 2008.
Earnings per share amounted to RMB1.01.

In light of the positive business performance and the sound financial
conditions of the Group, the Board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board” or the “Directors”) recommended the distribution of a
final dividend of HK$0.35 per ordinary share (equivalent to RMB0.31
approximately).

The impact of the financial crisis on the export of the garment
industry was aggravated in 2009. According to China Customs
Statistics, the export revenue of China textile garment industry
(including textile yarn, fabrics, finished products, apparel and apparel
accessories, the same below) was US$167.02 billion in 2009,
representing a drop of 10.1% as compared to the previous year. Out
of the total export value, the export of textile products amounted to
US$59.97 billion, representing a drop of 8.4% as compared to the
previous year, and the garment export dropped 11.0% to US$107.05
billion as compared to the previous year. In the most rigorous period
of the industry, China government launched various incentive and
guiding policies, including consecutive upward adjustments of the
export tax rebate rate, for the textile garment industry. Starting from
1 April 2009, the tax rebate rate has been adjusted upwards to
16%. The textile garment industry has been included in the top ten
industry promotion plan. The labor-intensive garment processing
enterprises have been encouraged to relocate to the central region
of China. The bank loan interest rate has been stabilized as well.
While lowering operating pressure of enterprises, the confidence of
the enterprise operators in future development was also enhanced.
The textile garment industry has contributed a lot in solving the
problem of unemployment and stabilizing the society. | believe that
China government would continue to support and encourage the
development of the industry.

Annual Report 09 3% 13
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Chairman’s Statement
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The adverse effects of foreign environment have caused tremendous
pressure on the small and medium enterprises in the industry,
with even higher ratio of concentration for the industry. Guided
and supported by national policies, the industry has expedited
its structural adjustment and industrial upgrading process. The
management concepts such as expediting technical innovation,
developing circular economy and exploring domestic market have
become important to the enterprise operators gradually. The Group
has long considered the development strategy of the enterprise
in longer term. After years of commitment in product innovation,
energy-saving, emission reduction and lean production, the rate
of return has been on the rise in recent years. The entire industry
has been striving for transformation and upgrades. The Group will
endeavor to enhance its leading position in the industry.

| realize that the export of the textile garment industry has begun
to improve. However, the industry remains in a rigorous situation.
The soaring labor costs, the expected continual appreciation
of Renminbi, the rising prices of raw materials etc will bring
new pressure to the whole industry. In my belief, in the adverse
development environment, it is more important to upgrade the
competitiveness of the enterprise than to go after scale and fast
expansion.

In 2009, the respective garment factories of the Group in Anging
City, Anhui Province and Quzhou City, Western Zhejiang Province
commenced production smoothly with further recruitment of
personnel in early 2010. The newly constructed textile industrial park
will also launch production officially this year, complemented with
the construction of the warehouse. The new dyeing and finishing
factory is near completion. It is expected to launch production in
the second quarter of 2010. The reuse facilities for treating recycled
water are under expansion to attain the target of treating 15,000
tonnes a day. It will further cut the consumption of water resources
and reduce emission of sewage. In the course of expanding its
production capacity, the Group has also had sufficient consideration
of the effects of labor resources, the costs of logistics, the advanced
functions of the equipment, the capability of energy-saving, and the
environmental protection in the long-term development of the Group.

14 M EIRE £ @35 A% A IR A 7] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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During the year, the Board worked closely with various professional
committees on the Group’s overall strategies and targets. We
have achieved significant results with our great efforts. Every staff

member of the Company endeavors to pursue excellent corporate
governance and attain fairness and justification in our decision-
making process, ensure and maintain high transparency of our
governance, and try all the best to provide open communication
channels for all of our shareholders and investors.

I would like to thank the Directors for their hard work during the year,
as well as the management and all staff members for their utmost
dedication on the job, for it is their diligent work that contributes to
the realization of the established goals of the Group. Last but not
least, | would like to express my gratitude to all of our shareholders
and clients for their persistent trust in the Company leading to a
brighter future for the Group.

Looking forward, we will continue to develop the Company into
the most competitive enterprise for knitwear OEM, further upgrade
the leading position of the Group in the industry, try our very best
to create values for our clients and bring optimal return to our
shareholders.

Chairman of the Board
Ma Jianrong

27 March 2010 Ningbo, China,

Annual Report 09 i 15
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Diversify the products, explore quality clients
and optimize production process to enhance the
Group’s competitiveness
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

The impact of the financial crisis on the textile garment industry in
China continued to aggravate in 2009. The export sales volume
of the industry has experienced a year-on-year decrease for
the first time during the last decade. In light of the insufficient
market demand, there was bigger impact on the small-scale
enterprises but with smaller impact on the large-scale counterparts
possessing leading technology, which resulted in a higher ratio of
concentration in the industry. Under the guidance and support of
the national macro-economic policy, the industry has expedited its
structural adjustments and industrial upgrades. The operators of
the enterprises have placed importance gradually on the operation
concepts such as “expediting technical innovation, developing low-
carbon economy and exploring domestic market”. The vigorous
support of the government for the industry including the upward
adjustment of the export tax rebate, and the implementation of
the rejuvenation plan in the industry has effectively decreased its
operating pressure and enhanced the confidence of the enterprises
in their future development. At present, the positive operation of the
entire industry is on the rise again.

18 e B &£ B2 A BR 2 8 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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According to China Customs Statistics, the export revenue of
China textile garment industry (including textile yarns, fabrics,
finished products, apparel and apparel accessories, the same
below) was US$167.02 billion in 2009, representing a drop of
10.1% as compared to the previous year. Out of the total export
value, the export of textile products amounted to US$59.97 billion,
representing a year-on-year drop of 8.4%, and the garment export
dropped 11.0% to US$107.05 billion on the year-on-year basis.
In 2009, European Union, the US and Japan remained to be the
biggest export markets for China of its textile garment, comprising
50.2% of the total export value of the textile garment during the
year. In particular, the export to the European Union amounted to
US$36.06 billion representing a decrease of 7.3%. The export to
the US amounted to US$26.4 billion with a growth rate of 4.1%.
The export to Japan increased slightly by 0.1% to US$21.33 billion.
Furthermore, the export to Hong Kong dropped 12.8% to US$13.94
billion. The export to the Oriental Imperial Union dropped by 2.9%
to US$10.9 billion. Based on the analysis of its major markets, the
decrease was bigger in European Union and the Hong Kong. The
export to the US and Japan were stabilized basically. China’s textile
products have maintained their greater competitive strengths on the
international market.
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During the year, the export of China’s textile garment mainly
originated from the coastal provinces as in the past. In particular,
the export value from the top five provinces amounted to 76% of
the total export in China but came with different levels of decrease.
The export of Zhejiang Province amounted to US$39.75 billion,
the highest one in China, though it came with a drop of 5.9% as
compared to the previous year. Guangdong Province ranking next
had its export amounting to US$30.99 billion decreased by 9.2% as
compared to the previous year. The exports amounting to US$26.71
billion, US$15.29 billion and US$14.19 billion respectively from
Jiangsu Province, Shanghai City and Shandong Province reflected
a corresponding decrease of 8.5%,7.9% and 8.7%. Though the
amount of the export from the central region has taken a less
significant share, the amounts of export from provinces such as
Sichuan, Anhui and Jiangxi have come up with positive growth as
compared to the previous year.

According to the statistical information released by the General
Administration of Customs of China, the total import and export
value of China foreign trade comprising US$1,201.67 billion
(16.0% less than the previous year) for the export and US$1,005.6
billion (11.2% less than the previous year for the import, totaling
US$2,207.27 billion in 2009 that is, 13.9% less than that of 2008. In
December during the year, the total import and export value of China
foreign trade showed a vigorous rebound with a total import and
export value of US$243.02 billion representing a year-on-year growth
of 32.7% and a period-on-period growth of 16.7%

In 2009, under the guidance of the Chinese government policy for
expanding domestic demand, the garment sales kept on growing
rapidly on the domestic market. According to the information
announced by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the retail
volume of the garment recorded a year-on-year growth of 20.8%
during the year. The persistent growth of the domestic market
demand has created a substantial support for the development of
the textile garment industry.

20 HINEABREEZERER A7 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



ERETHEHN

Management Discussion and Analysis

REEESREREEELENTE FEK
HEIT X8 BRALERR T#_-TF
NFEEZRXRRRENE ORI X% =
TENFA—AR BRENLORME
NRET—HAa2HE15% — T HFN
A—HR #—FPERENLOEHERS
F16% © R - BT BN R 508 8= S8
BREBMEER WHES BRHEFENS
BED BN BLHRELNHBRE
MIGCERPAISRER  UxoBEEL
MRS EEE - BAT TEREFELER
MAERNERELSM FIHTEAHEE
X EHE R BERETISEREERT KRR
EeBEEN—BEH PEMNRREMT
B LB TRSOMEE Bt RETT
XU RAEAAQRERE - PEROAN
TMEZREBARIFEABRNEBE hES
BFMAHERAROKETNE  LEBS
BRECEIEFMERIIGETEHRERA -

—ETRELA-+—A FERGTER
BT NE AREERTETEE 27 M
RUMISHRARE 2% & T EEET
W R TEEENISERHE - BE
ETAF+-A=+ A1 LBRERKE
AT ARMS.27657T  ARMERD 2
SHFHEH21.2% o FBHH AT A RISt R
FHE - FRARBSYE T ERRE T EATE
T BA MY AREE —SFHENTEEX
BEEIA  FEBRKKEEEEREEARSE
FEMBELER [REARKERELRD -
PR BT | o BERERKE K
ARMEMBEHAEFHEME AR EEER
IR AR AEFENENEFE

fig o

In order to alleviate the impact of the financial crisis on the real
economy, the Chinese government has taken the initiative to adopt
a progressive economic policy. After the two consecutive upward
adjustments of the garment export tax rebate rate in 2008, the
garment export tax rebate rate was increased by 1% to a total of
15% starting from 1 February 2009, followed by a further increase to
16% starting from 1 April 2009. At the same time, the government
encouraged the major development of textile products involving
substantial technology, with high value added and low consumption
of resources in the eastern coastal districts, motivated and guided
the labor-intensive textile garment processing enterprises to relocate
to the central and the western regions so as to bring the coastal
and the inland regions into full play of their respective strengths. At
present, the unemployment rates of the major developed economic
systems are still historically high, which has restricted the growth
of personal consumption expenditures. It will take a considerable
period of time for the international market to resume the demand for
garment products. China garment products have taken a very big
share on the international market. Therefore, in the course of having
further development in upgrading its transformation, the garment
industry not only requires the government to maintain the stability
of the existing policies but also expects the government to provide
greater support for its upgrading transformation, in order to help the
textile garment enterprises to get through smoothly the difficult time
of having insufficient demand overseas.

On 21 July 2005, China implemented the reform on the foreign
exchange system. The exchange rate of Renminbi was no longer
pegged to USD only but proceeds with adjustment with reference
to a basket of currencies based on the market demand and supply,
resulting in a managed floating exchange rate system. As at 31
December 2009, the Renminbi has an accumulated appreciation
of 21.2% approximately in comparison to the rate of US$1 to
RMB8.2765 prior to the reform on the exchange rate. In contrast to
the rapid appreciation of Renminbi a few years ago, the exchange
rate between Renminbi and USD remained stable basically in the
year. At present, greater expectation for the further appreciation
of Renminbi prevails over the market. As to the issue of Renminbi
appreciation, Premier Wen Jiabao of the State Council of China said:
“To maintain basic stability of Renminbi at reasonable and balanced
level. In light of the substantial appreciation of Renminbi since the
exchange rate reform and the current weak basis of global economic
recovery, the pressure on the substantial appreciation of Renminbi
has been alleviated to some extent.
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As affected by the financial crisis, it was easier for the enterprises to
recruit workers and the pressure on soaring labor cost was relieved
temporarily in 2009. However, following the economic recovery, the
situation of tight labor supply existed again in the coastal region.
Meanwhile, the inland residents have had better opportunities of
securing local employment because of the enhanced development
in the central and western regions further promoted by the
government. Some of these laborers are reluctant to return to the
coastal region for work. In the long run, the trend of soaring labor
cost will not change in the coastal region.

According to the information of the National Bureau of Statistics of
China, China had a year-on-year decrease of 0.8 million hectares for
its cotton plantation with an area of 4.95 million hectares remained
in 2009. The cotton output was 6.4 million tonnes for the entire
year, which was 14.6% less than the previous year. Based on the
information of the United States Department of Agriculture, the
global cotton output was expected to reach 22.36 million tonnes,
that is, 1.09 million tonnes less than the year of 2008/09. Amidst
the major nations producing cotton, India and Brazil had a slight
increase of output while China, the US, Pakistan and O’zbekiston
had a year-on-year decrease of output. In particular, the decrease
in China was the biggest. Despite the amount of garment export
decreased by 10% for the year, the cotton price reversed its initial
falling trend to soar up in the latter part of 2009. The Chinese
government had managed to minimize the fluctuation of the cotton
price on the market to a certain extent by controlling its import
quota and adjusting the stock volume of cotton reserves. However,
the cotton price ended up with a 30% fluctuation in 2009. After the
substantial rebound of the cotton price, the cotton farmers benefited
from various levels of increased revenue. However, in comparison
with other economic agricultural products, the revenue from growing
cotton remained low. It was unlikely for the cotton price to fall
substantially again.
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Analysis

In order to cope with the impact of the financial crisis on the real
economy, the appropriate slackening of its monetary policy by the
Chinese government provided vigorous support for the rebound of
China economy in 2009. Its gross domestic product had a year-
on-year increase of 8.7%. The government policy was the key
factor for bringing about the economic rebound. However, as the
global economic recovery takes a comparatively long process; the
overseas demand remains insufficient; and the basis of the economic
rebound is still unstable, therefore, it is expected that the appropriate
slackening of monetary policy will go on. During the year, Renminbi
remained stable (the one-year loan rate for Renminbi was 5.31%) but
the prices of the international primary commodities have rebounded
obviously. In January 2010, the CPI had a year-on-year increase of
1.5% leading to a certain expectation of inflation on the market. With
prices kept on surging, there was greater room for adjusting the
interest rate upward.

2010 is the second year for carrying out the Adjustment and
Revitalization Plan of Textile Industry. The textile garment export will
recover from recession. At the same time, following the structural
adjustment of global economy and the structural upgrade of
domestic consumption, it is important for the future development
of the industry to rely on technical innovation, emission reduction,
and establishment of brand names in the process of optimizing and
upgrading the textile garment industry.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2009, Shenzhou International with persistent optimal growth
further consolidated its leading position in the industry. In review
of the work during the year, the Group obtained remarkable
results in implementing energy-saving and consumption-reducing
arrangements, deepening lean production management and
optimizing production base layout. The specific performance
included:

Prominent Effectiveness of Energy-saving and Consumption-
reducing Arrangement

The Group obtained prominent effectiveness of the energy-
saving and consumption-reducing arrangement by introducing
globally advanced equipment in terms of environmental protection,
persistent deepening of internal management, optimizing production
techniques and transforming equipment, which resulted in the
annual reduction of energy consumed per product unit. In 2009, the
Group had a year-on-year increase of 26.4% of its sales revenue.
The cost of utility expenditure including electricity, steam and water
resources was basically the same as the previous year. The water
reuse facilities of the Group not only reduced consumption of water
resources but also decreased the emission of sewage. At present,
the Group is expanding its existing water reuse facilities. The new
facilities are expected to be completed for use in 2010. After
expansion, the capacity of the water reuse facilities of the Group will
reach 15,000 tonnes per day. The local government has appreciated
the efforts of the Group in its energy-saving and emission-reducing
arrangement. Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhou
Knitting”), a member of the Group, had the honor of obtaining
the award of “Advanced Energy-saving and Emission-reducing
Enterprise in Ningbo”.

Persistent Deepening of Lean Production Management

In 2009, the Group continued to deepen the lean production
management by enhancing the education and training of the
employees, carrying out the promotion and implementation of
various management systems and identifying the targets and roles of
each production department, which effectively increased production
efficiency, decreased production cost, connected the various
production processes more reasonably, and further shortened the
lead time of product delivery. As a result, the strengths of the vertical
integration of the Group have been elaborated to a higher level.
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Optimization of Production Base Layout

The new garment factory in Anging City, Anhui Province in the central
region of China (“Anging Factory”) of the Group has been upgrading
its production capacity since it launched production in the first
quarter of 2009. As most of its employees were recruited locally, the
turnover rate of the employees was comparatively low. At present,
Anging Factory is carrying out personnel recruitment for its Phase I
development. During the year, the newly constructed textile industrial
park of the Group in Ningbo Economic and Technical Development
Zone (the “Development Zone”) has also launched production, with
packaged warehouse to effectively lower the logistics cost. In the
Development Zone, the construction of the dyeing and finishing
factory has been completed basically. It launched production
officially in the first half of 2010.

Optimal Growth of Export Sales

The insufficient demand from overseas has affected the overall
export status of the garment industry in China. Having benefited from
its leading position in the industry, the Group obtained satisfactory
sales growth in the year. Based on the China Customs Statistics,
the China Chamber of Commerce for Import & Export of Textiles
announced the information on the ranking of garment export
enterprises. In terms of garment production enterprises (excluding
textiles) as at 31 December 2009, the garment export sales volume
of Shenzhou Knitting obtains the nation-wide No. 1 ranking again.
The Group has secured better growth on the major markets
worldwide, with a 31.4% growth of sales volume during the year on
its key export market — Japan, followed by respective year-on-year
increases of 30.1% and 23.7% in its garment export to the US and
Europe as well.

More Reasonable Product Structure

The Group has kept on upgrading its product quality and improving
its product structure, so as to provide more comprehensive product
choices for its customers. Accounting for 8.6% of the total sales, the
underwear sales volume has secured rapid growth with a year-on-
year growth of 110.6% during the year. The sales volume of sports
wear and casual wear also had respective year-on-year growth of
26.2% and 18.2%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sales

Sales for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
RMB6,093,485,000, an increase of RMB1,270,889,000 or 26.4%
compared to RMB4,822,596,000 for the year ended 31 December
2008. The growth was mainly driven by 1) the continuous and sharp
increase in the sales of sports wear has expedited the development
and sales of lingerie; 2) the product portfolio has been balanced
and the sales of casual wears has recovered to increase; and 3) the
acceleration of the exploration of Japanese market.

Sales of the Group analysed by product categories for 2009 and
2008 are compared as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December

“EEhF —ETNF ol
2009 2008 Change
ARBT R AR®FT AREBETT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
REM By products
NEELES Casual wear 2,835,415 46.5 2,398,304 49.7 437,111 18.2
EBEERE Sports wear 2,578,060 42.3 2,042,315 42.3 535,745 26.2
DB Lingerie 524,141 8.6 248,929 5.2 275212 110.6
H &8 m Other knitting
products 155,869 2.6 133,048 2.8 22,821 17.2
HE BET Total sales 6,093,485  100.0 4,822,596  100.0 1,270,889 26.4
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For the year ended 31 December 2008, sales from casual
wear amounted to RMB2,398,304,000 which increased to
RMB2,835,415,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009,
representing an increase of RMB437,111,000 or 18.2%. The growth
was mainly driven by 1) the continuing improvement of the quality
of casual wear and shortening of the delivery turnover to fulfill
market demand; 2) the balanced product portfolio through effective
adjustment in the recent years, the development of sales of high
quality casual wear has increased.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009, sales of sports
wear remained 42.3% to the total sales and increased by
RMB535,745,000 or 26.2% compared to the year ended 31
December 2008. The Group continues to accelerate its effective
implementation of the refined strategy to increase the proportion of
highend products and adjust the product portfolio. The impact of
Beijing Olympic Games realized a rapid increase of sales in sports
wears in the corresponding period of 2008 and followed up the
success in 2008, a considerable increase was yielded in the year
2009, mainly benefited from the strength in developing product of
our company and reorganization of suppliers from certain customers.

Sales of lingerie for the year ended 31 December 2009 increased
by RMB275,212,000 or 110.6% to RMB524,141,000 from
RMB248,929,000 in the year ended 31 December 2008. The Group
has provided the customers with comprehensive choices by rapidly
increasing the lingerie products and expanding its product portfolio
in a reasonable manner.

Sales of the Group analyzed by regions for 2009 and 2008 are
compared as follows:

BLEt+-A=+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—EENE —ETNF &
2009 2008 Change
ARE T ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
Em%5 By regions
SN Japan 3,201,526 52.5 2,437,304 50.5 764,222 31.4
B Europe 929,192 15.3 751,442 15.6 177,750 23.7
EH The US 339,692 5.6 261,079 5.4 78,613 30.1
HE R Other countries 531,090 8.7 455,497 9.5 75,593 16.6
B BN & /N Sub-total for
international sales 5,001,500 82.1 3,905,322 81.0 1,096,178 28.1
A5 & Domestics sales 1,091,985 17.9 917,274 19.0 174,711 19.0
SHE A Total sales 6,093,485 100.0 4,822,596 100.0 1,270,889 26.4
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Despite an overall decrease of 11% of garment exports from
Mainland China due to the inadequate demand from oversea market,
the Group still recorded an encouraging increase of oversea sales.
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As the most significant market to the Group, Japanese market
always has been the focus of the Group in all these years. As a
result of the continuous exploration for years, our product has a well
formed customer presence in the Japanese market. For the year
ended 31 December 2008, sales to Japanese market amounted to
RMB2,437,304,000, which increased to RMB3,201,526,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2009 by RMB764,222,000 or 31.4%.

Leveraged from effects of the diversified strategy and conformation
of the demand from worldwide markets of certain customers, except
for the Japanese market, sales to other markets also realized sound
increase. For the year ended 31 December 2009, sales to Europe,
the US and other oversea markets increased by 23.7%, 30.1% and
16.6% respectively.

Domestic sales of garments amounted to approximately
RMB964,664,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009 (For the
year ended 31 December 2008: RMB819,880,000), increased by
17.7%. Despite the growth rate decreased as compared to 2008,
after considering the rapid growth in 2008 as a result of the positive
impact of the Beijing Olympic Games, the increase of this year is still
satisfactory.

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2009 amounted to approximately RMB4,159,229,000 (2008:
RMB3,673,524,000). The gross profit margin of the Group’s sales
for 2009 was 31.7% or approximately 7.9 point higher as compared
to 23.8% for 2008. The Group’s revenue included the gain of
RMB104,067,000 (2008: RMB128,215,000) from forward exchange
hedges between US dollars and Renminbi. If such forward exchange
is not taken into account, the gross profit margin of the Group’s
sales was 30.6% (2008: 21.7%), an 8.9 point rise as compared
to 2008. The significant growth in gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to 1) a decrease in production costs due to the Group’s
continual improvement in its internal production management and
its performance in emissions reduction; 2) Optimal utilization of
production equipment due to an increase in sales order, resulting in
better vertical integration and 3) highly favorable national policies for
garment export enterprises.

28  HINEEREEZER AR A7 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



ERETHEHN

Management Discussion and Analysis

RARREFEARMGES

RZZZENF+ZA=+—8 AR alRER
BABEREE R B ARES,882,495,000
T (ZZEENF : ARM2,860,387,0007T) °
HeEme & E A ARYS,038,729,0007T
ZEENF: ARM2,619,575,0007T)
mB)E EFEARARKI33,068,0007T (=
TT )\ F: AR¥327,771,0007T) * FERF
BEAAREK77,001,000T (ZEENF:
AR®74,373,00070) RV B REZRE A
AR #13,201,000 (ZEZENF: ARK
12,586,0007T) ° A A B R ERF B A B
EINEZHRNRBEFIE M -

/)Ib@ﬁ%&ﬂjﬁﬁlﬁ
HEZZTNAFTZA=Z+T—RHLEFE"
AEELKEEKMSESFEHOARE
1,147,264,0000C - ZZEZNFRIHNAARK
755,614,000/t AR EBER —_EZNF+ =
A=+—HBzEBEFE(RITEBEEARS R
ReEEY) A ARES17,961,000T ' & =
TENF+_A=Z+—BZEEFEARE
592,701,0007T ' )& 2 T A R #274,740,000
TTe

AEFRRZZETZNFT_A=T—A0E2
kRS EEWMAARE377,717,000T (=
TT)\F: ARK¥238,141,0007T) @ BEE
#2058 B A\ R#695,678,0007T (- BE )\ 4
AR #830,842,0007T - HF B HARITIER A
AR 766,597,000 - REARITERBAR
#64,245,00070) - EREHRTERAA
R #619,558,0007T ' REASRITER B AR
76,120,0007T ° R A B IR 5 A A JEAL =
B AR #3,882,495,000L (ZZEZENF: A
R #2,860,387,0007T ) ° 7~ & & 38 € 7 8y ik
MR- BEHEELE (RREELEEN
ARRIRERBEABGEZEDLAE) A
17.9% (ZZEZTN\F:29.0%) °

R_EENF+_A=+t—HB AKEEXZ
& B4 B 7E A R 5t 8 o A5 B & A A
e HRSRH  F) R R

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE COMPANY'’S
EQUITY HOLDERS

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s equity attributable to
the Company’s equity holders was RMB3,882,495,000 (2008:
RMB2,860,387,000), of which non-current assets amounted
to RMBS3,038,729,000 (2008: RMB2,619,575,000), net current
assets amounted to RMB933,968,000 (2008: RMB327,771,000),
non-current liabilities amounted to RMB77,001,000 (2008:
RMB74,373,000) and minority interests amounted to
RMB13,201,000 (2008: RMB12,586,000).
attributable to the Company’s equity holders was mainly due to the

The increase in equity

increase in retained profits.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2009, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB1,147,264,000, while that for 2008 was approximately
RMB755,614,000. Net borrowings (bank borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents) of the Group as at 31 December 2009
amounted to RMB317,961,000, a decrease of RMB274,740,000
as compared to that as at 31 December 2008, which amounted to
RMB592,701,000.

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December
2009 amounted to RMB377,717,000 (2008: RMB238,141,000).
The total balance of our borrowings was RMB695,678,000
(2008: RMB830,842,000, of which short-term bank loans
amounted to RMB766,597,000 and long-term bank loans
amounted to RMB64,245,000), in which short-term bank loans
amounted to RMB619,558,000 and long-term bank loans
amounted to RMB76,120,000. Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to RMBS3,882,495,000 (2008:
RMB2,860,387,000).
position, with a debt to equity ratio (total outstanding borrowings as

The Group maintained a healthy liquidity

a percentage of equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders)
of 17.9% (2008: 29.0%).

As at 31 December 2009, the majority of the borrowings of the
Group were subject to fixed interest rates. The Group did not enter
into any interest rate swaps to hedge against the risks associated
with interest rates.
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FINANCE COSTS AND TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2009, finance costs went down
from RMB51,417,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008 to
RMB25,393,000, mainly because during the year, the Group repaid
some of its bank borrowings which contributed to the decrease in
the corresponding interest expenses. The Group’s USD and RMB
loan interest rates during the year ranged from 2.26% to 2.95% and
3.65% to 5.31% respectively (2008: 4.22% to 8.12% and 4.54% to
7.47% respectively).

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded an
income tax charge of RMB220,439,000 a significant increase
of RMB163,471,000 as compared to an income tax charge of
RMB56,968,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008. The
increase in income tax charges in 2009 was mainly attributable to
the increase in income tax rate, and the increase in taxable income.

According to the “Notice by the PRC State Council on the
Implementation of the Grandfathering Preferential Policies under
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law”, the applicable tax rate in
the coming years for our manufacturing subsidiaries in Ningbo
Economic & Technical Development Zone will be 22% in 2010; 24%
in 2011 and 25% in 2012. The entitlement of certain companies to
the preferential tax treatment of a 2-years exemption and a 50%
reduction for 3 years may remain in force according to the original
tax law and administrative regulation until the expiry of the tax
holiday.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2009, buildings and land use rights of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB173,242,000 (as at 31 December
2008: RMB179,893,000) as at 31 December 2009 were pledged
to secure a medium to long-term loan facilities of USD21,000,000
granted by the Zhejiang Province branch of the Export-Import Bank
of China. As at 31 December 2009, the Company has borrowed
USD9,181,000 (as at 31 December 2008: USD13,000,000) from
the bank. Furthermore, the Group has entered into a long-term
borrowing contract to an extent of RMB90,000,000 with Beilun sub-
branch of Bank of China Limited, while plants and land use rights
with a carrying amount of RMB35,231,000 as at 31 December 2009
were pledged as security. As at 31 December 2009, the Group
borrowed a loan balance of RMB39,500,000 from the bank.
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ACQUISITION

Details are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RISKS

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in United States Dollars
whilst its purchases were mainly settled in RMB, its costs and
operating profit were subject to exchange rate fluctuations. The
Group adopted a policy to hedge part of its exchange risks in light
of existing fluctuations of the exchange rate between USD and
RMB. The amount to be hedged would depend on the Group’s USD
revenue, purchases and capital expenditure requirements, as well as
market forecast of fluctuations in the USD to RMB exchange rate.

To safeguard itself against reductions in value and the volatility
of future cash flows which might result from any exchange rate
movement between RMB and USD, the Group had arranged an
appropriate amount of USD borrowings. As at 31 December 2009,
out of our total bank borrowings, USD borrowings amounted to
RMB322,917,000 (USD47,292,000 based on the original currency)
(31 December 2008: RMB208,455,000 (USD30,500,000 based
on the original currency)). In addition, the Group had entered into
foreign currency forward contracts for hedging against certain
foreign exchange exposures, in particular, exposure to the forecast
sales denominated in USD. As at 31 December 2009, the total
amount of the outstanding USD forward contracts designated to
hedge the exchange risk of the future sales was approximately
USD928,000,000 (as at 31 December 2008: approximately
USD273,500,000). The Group has also entered into various non-
deliverable forward currency contracts. As at 31 December 2009,
the outstanding non-deliverable forward currency contracts
amounted to USD893,500,000 (as at 31 December 2008:
USD273,500,000).
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EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had over 42,650 employees.
Total staff costs, including administrative and management staff,
accounted for approximately 19.2% of the Group’s sales during
the year (2008: 19.1%). The Group remunerated its staff according
to their performance, qualifications and industry practices and
conducted regular reviews of its remuneration policy. Employees
would receive bonuses and monetary awards based on their ratings
in annual performance appraisals. The Company also offered
rewards or other incentives to motivate personal growth and career
development of the employees, such as ongoing opportunities for
training to enhance their technical skills and product knowledge as
well as their knowledge of industry quality standards. All new staff
members of the Group are required to attend an introductory course.
There were also various types of training courses available to all the
employees.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS
During the year, the Group’s total investments in property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and other intangible assets amounted to
approximately RMB654,725,000, of which approximately 57% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
40% was used for the construction of new factory buildings and the
acquisition of land use rights, and the remaining balance was used
for the purchase other fixed assets and intangible assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
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FUTURE PROSPECT AND STRATEGIES

Based on its inherent leading comprehensive competitive
capabilities, the Group not only overcame the adverse effects of the
financial crisis, but also obtained remarkable growth to lay a better
basis for future development. In face of the comparatively uncertain
external environment in future, the Group will continue to upgrade its
inherent comprehensive competitive capabilities in order to secure
persistent development under adverse circumstances and create
better returns for our shareholders on the whole.

At present, there are signs for the recovery of the export situation
for the garment industry. As at 28 February 2010, the export of
garment and apparel accessories reached US18.08 billion for the
first two months, representing a year-on-year growth of 23.8%.
However, the recovery of the market demand is expected to go
on slowly. It is unlikely to have rapid growth of the overall garment
export in the short term. Only those enterprises having succeeded
in transformation and upgrade are able to have better development.
The Chinese government has also reinforced the production upgrade
of the textile garment industry, as well as guiding and encouraging
the regional relocation. It is believed that it will have greater
benefits for those enterprises placing emphasis on environmental

development and heading for high-end transformation.

The Group will continue to upgrade the competitive capabilities of
the products on the consumer market, take the initiative to attract
the talent to join in, encourage the technical innovation, expand
the technical research, keep on heading for high-end product
development, expedite the development of new products, explore
the sales market by means of quality products and provide the
products with higher value added for the clients of the Group.

The Group will continue to place emphasis on the effectiveness
of the energy-saving and emission-reducing arrangement and
enhancing the lean production management, so as to control the
production cost effectively. At present, the fluctuating prices of raw
materials and the appreciation of Renminbi are expected to affect
the cost of the Group to a certain extent. The Group has managed
to cope with the pressure of increasing cost by means of raising
production efficiency, minimizing the consumption of resources and
reasonable production arrangement. In the belief of the management
of the Group, cost control is the only way to keep the leading
position in the industry and deal with various difficulties arising from
the operation.
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The Group will promote the optimal process flow and further upgrade
the automation of production. Following the economic growth in
China, the labor cost also soars up on annual basis. In particular,
labor shortage has existed in the coastal region from time to time.
The Group has relocated its garment processing production base to
the central region at the right time, with efforts made at the same
time by applying various measures to minimize the extent of relying
on production workers at the production base in the coastal region.

The Group will continue to optimize the integrated production
processes, enhance the coordination and connection between
various workshops, and balance the production capacities of various
processes, so as to attain the best efficiency in asset utilization, with
shorter lead time for product delivery. The production capacities
of our factories in Anging City and Quzhou City will be upgraded
as soon as possible in 2010 while achieving the smooth launch of
production of the new dyeing and finishing factory.

As far as the market layout is concerned, the Group will go on
placing emphasis on its global exploration to avoid effectively the
fluctuation in operation relying on the single market. Meanwhile, as
the biggest garment supplier from China, the Group will elaborate
its strengths in sales accumulated during the years of exploring the
market in Japan with the aim to increase its market share in Japan.
Furthermore, having benefited from the persistent development
of the economy and the large population, the garment consumer
market in China has maintained better prospects in growth. The
Group will grasp the favorable opportunity to expand its market
share in China.

At present, China textile garment products take the biggest share
on the global market. However, there is still very great pressure
arising from foreign competition. The persistent promotion of
structural adjustments and production upgrades are mandatory
for the further development of the industry. The Group has made
all the very best to become the leader in the current reform of the
industry, by applying its strengths in terms of technology, scale and
capital to consolidate and enhance its comprehensive strengths in
competition, and provide optimal return for our shareholders and
investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently stable
in cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of Shenzhou International through continuing training
for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covered all the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) since 9 October 2005.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.

THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
whose biographical details and family relationships among certain
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 46 to 53. There is no
other material financial, business or relevant relationships among the
Directors.
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The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

Day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Group. Independent professional
advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board Meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” Section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Annual Report.

36 HINEEREEZERAR AT Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



Al Al N =+
PEERME

Corporate Governance Report

IRREEAREE
EFGEFELEALE I BERLIH-
EEGIRALBEREFERIALAEAL
ERE MEBLLEABETRAEES
BHARES BEEHHRE-

BYFHTESNE LM

B FRITEEMELEBBEFEENEN
=N WNEEREFHTHEEARL
MBEEZT ARBEZTHERME A /ALK
EIRE BN O NTE RERERR R
SENEBEBINR -BYFATEENACE
MEFSRHEBUMEENER UHES
EEHEBMARE - 2BBIUIFNTESRD
RXERBLMWERE LNEEN LD
HRAIARTE LRSI VAR TE

ESgRERERF
AREEEHRTERTEER B AKH
MEE PMHRR CEEARKRRER -E
ERBTESEERNRIUVREERT
TREZBRTARISREZZELFAEX
H EREFAMGHEEHEER HTERE
FEITHLAS -

NRAMERERIEZENEZTZRENE
BB BEEURBHAEBANRENER
CRLEBIHEXF - 2REFHERSE
REMMRMER MRFRESENL

ARTARBE-FEAFT-A=T-AL
FERABTNAZBEFEEH HED
S BT M RBER & LB ABT
EERE-ARRS 2REFLEHUEY

N
X &E 5%

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the overall management of the Board and significant
operational decisions of the Group, while the Group General
Manager is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for more than
one third of the members of the Board. The Independent Non-
executive Directors are outstanding executives or experts in the
textile industry who bring with them expertise in different areas. They
provide adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of
the Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent
and objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and
decisions. All independent Non-executive Directors have submitted
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to directors to ensure timely access the relevant information to
discharge their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records, respectively.

The Company held 4 full Board meetings for the year ended 31
December 2009, with all Directors attended, except for each of Mr.
Huang Guanlin, Mr. Ma Renhe and Mr. Dai Xiangbo, who was absent
from 1 meeting as he has another business engagement.
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Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with
additional meetings convened as and when necessary to determine
overall strategic directions and objectives and approve interim
and annual results and other significant matters. Since Mr. Chen
Zhongjing needed more time to deal with his private business, he
was redesignated as a non-executive director of the Company on
8 February 2010.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

Board Committees

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has set up three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Committees have been structured
to include a majority of Independence Non-executive Directors as
members in order to reinforce independence. All of the Committees
are governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005, which comprises
one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Renhe, Mr. Su Shounan and Mr. Dai
Xiangbo, and Mr. Ma Renhe is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. No director will take part in any discussion
on his or her own remuneration. The details of their fees are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload, responsibility, and job

industry practice.

complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance in
2009. At the meeting, it reviews the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 9
October 2005, which comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Guanlin,
Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Mr. Dai Xiangbo, and Mr. Huang Guanlin is
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; regularly review the structure,
headcount and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board

for any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance
in 2009. At the meeting, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring directors for shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

Annual Report 09 3% 39



;LI/_/\—/-\—\

PEEIRWME

Corporate Governance Report

ZERERES

RIELZEBGHEBR EMALTHAERH
BRERBRRAG LXHEFEZERESTS

REARANESER TAREFSLE
RMBEFTURTUNEMERRZRNESTH
THEEETERRAFAG (EAMEE
BATEBRRAS (FREMHERRZR) R
RS EERARREZE WS AAE
ENERIEBR=ZFRERBFRELHFE
TR UHRREE -IEBIFRNTESH
FETHOTBRE=F-

BEREES

R-ZZEERFE+ANB ARGERLETHHR
HIZE3.21%3. 231%}5)61%%;@\ @ BIZEE
CHEEBERE 2B IUIFRITEES  DRIAH

TR SR ERR T ELE - B R
RECTERZBEENER HES HBHER
MBTENERANBENEAEERZES
HE F

ERZEENTIZE AR AEENM KA
SRHEHI KA RRE IR 1F L BB T R B AR AT
BREEZREEEZNEENEE FHAE
IE’]EPHJ%&QEHE BARFEAEES R
MBEREEE BB

FEAF A=+
2R

k=1

“ETN\FE2ERE Eﬁ%#&%&%’fi%ﬁ ;
AR —_EFZNFHRHRERE AKENRNIR
ZREEE EHRENAMEZRSE -

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors and to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case of
an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire by
rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to re-
election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive Director
are appointed for specific terms for not more than three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 3.21 to 3.283 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005,
which currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Dai Xiangbo, Mr. Su Shounan and Mr. Zong
Pingsheng. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Dai Xiangbo,
whose expertise in accounting, auditing and finance enables him to
provide leadership for the Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices and internal controls. These include determining of
the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual accounts and assessing the completeness and

effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance for the
year ended 31 December 2009. At the meetings, it reviewed the
2008 final results, financial report and auditing issues, with the
external auditors, and the 2009 interim results, the activities of the
Group’s internal audit functions, the internal audit report on business

operations.
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Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
Committee Meetings held in 2009 are set out in the following table.
The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board Meetings was
90.6%.

HE/BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
Ezgea ENEES FmMzee REZE8E® RREAFAS®
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

BYKHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
RTELE 4/4 2/2 - 1/1 1
Mr. Zong Pingsheng
BHREE 3/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 1
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
HEEEE 4/4 2/2 1/1 - 1
Mr. Su Shounan
kHTES
Non-executive Director
BB EE 4/4 - - - 1
Mr. Chen Zhongjing
HiTES
Executive Directors
SRREE 4/4 - - - 1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BEMEE 3/4 - - 1/1 1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BCMEE 3/4 - 1/1 - 1
Mr. Ma Renhe
ByEat+ 4/4 - - - 1

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Bt 3 3R &
EXgHALAFAEERBREAEAANAR
AR XREBEEEGFMDEAMNEE
WERBNEL G ERREKE - NAAE
BEEMNGABERY ERRA  AIEHE R
BB EERA R -BERRNEVBRE
EEAKENRERREARELTBELS
RIBFR R RE A -

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility to maintain an appropriate
internal control system and to ensure accurate reporting of the
Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the public in a timely
manner.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to enhance
operating effectiveness and efficiency, to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition, to maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reports that are
true and fair, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system aims at providing a reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing rather than eliminating operational risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009,
which covered controls over financial reporting, operations and
compliance, as well as risk management functions, and considered
that the system of internal controls in operation in the Group have
been in place and functioning effectively.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access
to information that allows it to review all aspects of the Company’s
risk management, control and governance processes. On a regular
basis, it conducts audits on major activities and process of the
Group’s business and support units. It also conducts special reviews
or investigations of areas of concern identified by Management or
the Audit Committee. All audit reports are communicated to the Audit
Committee, Directors and key senior management. Audit issues are
tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with progress
reported to the Audit Committee, Directors and senior management
periodically.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Committee will,
prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ernst
& Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
amounted to RMB1,900,000.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing
Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors
securities transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of
the Securities Trading Code is provided to all Directors on their
appointment. Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days
prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results
and 60 days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s
annual results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed
to trade on the Company’s securities prior to the announcement
of its results (the period during which the directors are prohibited
from dealing in shares) and that all transactions must comply with
the Securities Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors
confirmed their strictly compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Securities Trading Code throughout the year.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price-

sensitive information due to their duties within the Company, and
hence, is required to comply with the Securities Trading Code.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, press
releases and presentations material can be retrieved through our
Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure that speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet.
For those who do not, hard copies of those website information
listed above are available free of charge upon request to the
Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

Shenzhou International has a policy of open communication and
fair disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.
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The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or Extraordinary General
Meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email
at kenjichan@shenzhougroup.com.hk or directly by questions at
an AGM or EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or
putting forward proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the
Company Secretary by the same means.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
Governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

AMENDMENTS TO THE LISTING RULES AND
THE CG CODE

In light of the amendments made to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code with effect from 1 January 2009, the Company has
incorporated such amendments in its corporate governance
practices commencing 1 January 2009 and will strive to improve its
corporate governance in the future.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Ma Jianrong (S5 #2%), aged 45,
and the Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for the overall

is an Executive Director

business development strategy of the Group and has over 29
years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill (48 B4% 45 &% ) and
Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (/1 & F &1 4% B 3
8% ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of the
knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager and
the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group. He
has been acting as the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. Mr. Ma is a deputy to the
People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province and a standing committee
member of Beilun District of Ningbo. He was named “Charity Model
of Ningbo (Z B T2 Z#48) " by Ningbo Charity Association ( 2 i
MEZ42) in September 2003.

Mr. Huang Guanlin (ZE##) , aged 44,
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily

is an Executive Director

operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 22 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (7T T %
A2 ) majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been acting as the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April
2005. He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong.

Mr. Ma Renhe (F1=#1), aged 49,
a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible for

is an Executive Director and

administration, dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has over
33 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping
Knitting and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked
as the manager and a deputy general manager of the dyeing and
finishing department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been acting as a
deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002. He is
a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father
are brothers).
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Ms. Zheng Miaohui (Ef#$#) , aged 54, is an Executive Director
and a deputy general manager of the Group. She is responsible for
the financial management of the Group and has over 25 years of
experience in financial management and obtained an accountant
qualification certificate. After joining the Group in 1988, Ms. Zheng
served as the manager and an assistant to the general manager of
the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She has been acting as
a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Zhongjing (B £ &), aged 47, is a Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Chen has 28 years of management experience in
administrative affairs. He has obtained a certificate of corporate
human resources manager. He worked for the People’s Government
of Ningbo City, and served as the head of Beilun District Committee
Office of CCP (R idtmEBEW R EE ), secretary of Daqi
Township Committee of CCP (R RWEZEEEF), a deputy
head of the Management Committee of Ningbo Beilun Technology
Park (BRIt mBIEEBEREZ @B E1), a deputy co-ordinating
major mechanical and electrical projects under the Ningbo
government (B EMIIFEREEB B ## 2 =&/EF) . Currently,
Mr. Chen is a deputy secretary to Ningbo Beilun Development
Zone Holding Company Limited (&t @mRAERITRER A G E
Z E|Z£% ) and a Vice Chairman and deputy general manager of
Ningbo Beilun Development Zone Holding Company Limited ( % &
teAREERERATIESRERILLIE). Mr. Chen was a
deputy general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. in
September 2003. He was appointed as an Executive Director and
a deputy general manager of the Company in October 2005. On 8
February 2010, he was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Su Shounan (%), aged 71, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group with effect from
30 December 2008. Mr. Su graduated from Textile Part-time College
(453 AH) . He is a senior economist. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Su has worked as the General Manager of Shanghai Threegun
Group ( L/ B =R &£ B4 4L3# ) | Chairman and director of Shanghai
Underwear Group ( £/8A &K & E ) and Factory Director of the Ninth
Knitting Manufactory ( #t 4 /LB & ) . Mr. Su was appointed as the
Honorary President of the Fifth Session of the Executive Council of
Shanghai Underwear Trade Association ( L8 RXITEHEE AE
BEELZE2EK)in November 2006. He was also a member of the
Executive Council of Shanghai Labour Model Association ( % 1 45
HEBIHGIEEEIES) from July 1999 to June 2002.

Mr. Zong Pingsheng (:R¥ %), aged 75, joined the Group in
July 2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Zong
was employed as a teacher of the textile engineering faculty at
Southern Yangtze University (VT AZ) (formerly known as Wuxi
College of Light Industry (588 T 3 &% ) and Wuxi University of
Light Industry (#4588 T K& )). He obtained the qualification of
professor in 1987. Mr. Zong has been awarded a special government
allowance by the State Council in 1992.

Mr. Dai Xiangbo (B # &), aged 47, joined the Group in July
2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director. He graduated
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics (JT 7 Bf & K
) in 1984, majoring in industrial accounting, and completed
his postgraduate study in Zhejiang University G ;T K 2) in
2002, majoring in economics. Mr. Dai has obtained PRC certified
accountant and senior accountant certificates. He currently serves
as the officer of Zhejing Accounting Service Center (HIL& &3t A
B R Lr), a professor specially retained by Zhejiang Finance
School at Accounting College (HT T B & ZBfr €5 2%t ) and a
member of the Registration Committee (7 fft & 8 &) of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (¥ Bl 5=t € &t Al &
He also serves as an independent non-executive director of Haitian
International Holdings Ltd. (8 KEFRIER B R A F]) (its shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and Eastcompeace Smart
Card Co., Ltd. (R{EFMFEeeRW D AR A A) (its shares are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Dai served as the division
head of the Industrial and Trade Audit Division of the Audit Bureau in
Zhejiang Province (1T A EF B IR EFTE ) , the deputy director of
the Audit Bureau in Xianju County, Zhejiang Province (1T % 1l & &
#E5HE) | the deputy head of the legal system division of Audit Office
in Zhejiang Province (/L& &5t EE)A#HEE ) and the deputy secretary
of Zhejiang Certified Public Accountant Association (I & & s
Ahipe) .
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Hu Jijun (B&E)
the Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group

aged 40, is a deputy general manager of

in Japanese, European and U.S. markets and has 20 years of
sales and marketing experience in the Japanese knitwear market.
After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr. Hu worked at
the production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving as
the deputy manager and an assistant to the general manager,
responsible for export sales. He has been acting as a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan (FR/&) ,
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such

aged 43, is a deputy general manager of

as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 21 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (BEEI#E) , aged 47, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 22 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department ( &7
—#B) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.

Ms. Chen Zhifen (B2 %),
of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing department,

aged 40, is a deputy general manager

and has over 20 years of experience in textile industry. After joining
the Group in April 1990, she worked as the section chief, the
manager of its garment manufacturing department, the manager
of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment manufacturing departments,
an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group. During the period
from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms. Chen studied in Naval
University of Engineering (/8% L2 X2 ), majoring in management
engineering.
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Mr. Jiang Tao (JI7E), aged 42, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group and the departmental manager of No. 1 sales
department of Shenzhou Knitting, and has 15 years of experience in
knitting and weaving industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the faculty of
English at Shanghai University ( £/ X2 ), majoring in English for
international trade. Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai
Dongfang Rimian Company Limited ( E/8 R 5 B4 ER A RF]) . After
joining the Group in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant
to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for
the sales to Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (E#&L ),
manager of the Group, responsible for technology and quantity

aged 45, is an assistant to the general

affairs, and has over 22 years of experience in textile industry. Prior
to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy factory
manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant (Z &4t @ R E M) in
charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager of the
production and operation department and an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (# #) , aged 43, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of fabric
technology, and has over 21 years of experience in textile industry.
He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang Industrial University (3T T ¥ X E) with
a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as the
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs in connection with fabrics and
technology.
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Mr. Yan Delin (&%), aged 54, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, in charge of the daily administration affairs
and its Cambodian operations of the Group and has over 22 years
of experience in textile industry. He has obtained the certificate of
assistant economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as
the head of the equipment division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and
Garment Plant, the head of its office, and a deputy general manager
of joint venture companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (57
R N
a Cambodian company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After
joining the Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy
head of the office of Ningbo Weaving and has been acting as an

, during which, he served as the general manager of

assistant to the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May
2005. He graduated from the Correspondence College at the Party
School of the Central Committee of CCP majoring in economic
management.

Mr. Pan Lianghua (B R #), aged 54, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the knitting and
weaving operations of the Group, and has 35 years of experience
in the textile industry. He graduated from a self-study course of the
China Central Radio and TV University (&R B8 A £ ) in 1987,
majoring in production operation management. Mr. Pan has served
as the deputy factory manager of Shanghai Knitting’s 20th Plant ( _E
JEET4 — 1+ ) , in charge of the technology department, and the
deputy head of the technology division of /& =18 & B &t 4% LK.
After joining the Group in January 1999, he served as the deputy
manager of the dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo Weaving
and was responsible for production and quality control.
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Mr. Ma Bin (E#) ,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the departmental

aged 38, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,

manager of No. 2 sales department of the Group. He is fully in
charge of the operation and project management and customer
relationship maintenance of the Nike business department. Mr. Ma
has 10 years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the
Group, he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department
of European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the Nike business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.

Mr. Song Qing (RE), aged 39,
manager and the departmental manager of No. 3 sales department

is an assistant to the general

of the Group. He is chiefly responsible for the general management
and system construction of the No. 3 sales department of the Group.
He assists the general manager with other aspects of operations
and has 12 years of experience in the textile industry. In 1994,
Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer Science
and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical University. He
obtained a Master of Technology from the National University of
Singapore in 2005 and received an NTU-SJTU Joint Executive MBA
(EMBA) Programme in 2008. Joining the Group in January 2007, Mr.
Song has 10 years of work experience in Singapore. Beginning in
1997, he worked as a senior software development engineer for a
software development firm for a year. In 1998, he joined 7k T 27,
AAB R A R] of the textile industry and served as its IT Manager and
Chief Information Officer (CIO) successively.
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Mr. Wang Cunbo (E#Fi§) ,
Department of the Group and the financial controller of Shenzhou

aged 37, is in charge of the Finance

Knitting. He graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#
IIHEKRE),

a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1995.

majoring in biology and chemical engineering, with
In the same vyear,
Mr. Wang studied at Zhejiang University of Technology where he
obtained a master’s degree in management in 1998. In addition, he
has obtained the certificates of the PRC certified public accountant,
the PRC registered tax agent and the PRC certified public valuer
and senior accountant and the operating permit of the PRC public
certified accountant engaged in securities and futures-related
business. Prior to joining the Group in May 2004, he was a partner
of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde United Accounting Firm ( 225 K f# 5k 12
e gEtRN AT ,
Corporate Management and Consulting Firm ( 555 5k 28 1b % & 12 3%
HETEFT) , and has over 6 years of experience in acting as certified
accountant.

deputy general manager of Ningbo Yongde

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (BRE ) , aged 39, joined the Group in
September 2008. Now, he is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 14 years of experience
in auditing, financial controlling, company secretary and accounting.
Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and
a Degree in Master of Science in China Business Management.
Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
primary activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on page 68 to 171.

The Directors recommend a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.35
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.31) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2009, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 28 May 2010,
to the shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of
Members of the Company at the close of business on 20 May 2010.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2009.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2009.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB765,500.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2009,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB590,974,000, of which RMB383,678,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a prorata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 172.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities shares
during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2009.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen Zhongjing
(redesignated to non-executive Director on 8 February 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Mr. Dai Xiangbo

Mr. Su Shounan

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ma Renhe, Mr. Chen Zhongjing and Mr. Dai Xiangbo
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for terms
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Su Shounan, Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Mr.
Dai Xiangbo and as at the date of this report still considers them to
be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination, at
any time, by either party giving the other party not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and is subject to
termination, at any time, by the Independent Non-executive Director
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Under the service contracts, each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus as the
Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided that
the aggregate amount of the discretionary management bonuses
payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial year of
the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the Group after
taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate amount of the
discretionary management bonuses but before non-recurring items
for the relevant financial year.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
below and “Related party transactions” in note 36 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, none of the directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on page 46 to 53.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

RAEATEBERPZEFR Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
HERRABEBIT
£ Bt & SORERER RHEHE RAEH 2 L (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BREREE 1 NG 776,332,500 62.36%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interest 776,332,500 62.36%
BEMEE 2 NERER 111,217,500 8.93%
Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Corporate interests 111,217,500 8.93%
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Note:

1. As at 31 December 2009, 776,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
80.25% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
13.95% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 5.8% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 776,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2009, 111,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 68.08% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 31.92% by certain senior management
of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui (an executive Director)
and Mr. Chen Zhongjing (a non-executive Director). MCC, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin of Mr.
Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be
interested in the 111,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2009, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

RAEARATNEBRPZHE Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
AR BT
£ Bt & 510 Rz ER g gE| R4 H 2 L (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
TEF 1 EnlEEA 776,332,500 62.36%
Splendid Steed 1 Beneficial owner 776,332,500 62.36%
fp &8 1 NAE T 776,332,500 62.36%
Keep Glory 1 Corporate interests 776,332,500 62.36%
2= 2 EnBEAA 111,217,500 8.93%
Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 111,217,500 8.93%
MCC 2 NEIR £ 111,217,500 8.93%
MCC 2 Corporate interests 111,217,500 8.93%

B 5 Notes:
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1. As at 31 December 2009, 776,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 80.25% by Splendid
Steed, 13.95% by BMX and 5.8% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr.
Huang Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing
(father of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is
deemed to be interested in the 776,332,500 Shares held by Keep
Glory.
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2. As at 31 December 2009, 111,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which in turn was owned as to 68.08% by MCC and 31.92% by certain
senior management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui (an
executive Director) and Mr. Chen Zhongjing (a non-executive Director).
MCC, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a
cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, MCC is deemed to be
interested in the 111,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and short
positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2009 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

hEBEE HEEEZ

B2 (%) B 7 b (%)

Percentage of Percentage of

Purchases (%) Sales (%)

EAMERBFE The largest supplier/customer 7.9 36.6
AAREEEREBE AT Five largest suppliers/customers

combined 29.6 82.2

RERTAEE BEEE REZHEAL
HAEMBER (REEMAMEAARRASRIA L
BER)RZETEZHERXEFEETME

b va
m °

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers at all times during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following transactions
between certain connected parties (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and the Company have been entered into and/or are ongoing for
which relevant disclosure had been made by the Company in the
Prospectus and announcements.

1. Continuing connected transactions
a. Lease of certain production premises and facilities

Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Ningbo
Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”)
entered into a lease agreement on 21 December 2007,
pursuant to which Shenzhou Properties leased to
Shenzhou Knitting the apparel production properties for
a period commencing on 1 January 2008 and expiring on
31 December 2010, with a right of renewal exercisable
by Shenzhou Knitting for a further term of three years at
or below the prevailing market rate (the “Principal Lease
Agreement”). The Principal Lease Agreement is terminable
by Shenzhou Knitting giving no less than three months’
notice to Shenzhou Properties. The rental so charged by
Shenzhou Properties is determined by reference to the
market rates for leasing similar properties and production
facilities from independent third parties under normal
commercial terms during the course of ordinary business
in Ningbo, China. Shenzhou Properties, which is owned
as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director,
and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial Investment
Company Limited (“Rongrong Industrial”), an associate
and therefore a connected person by virtue of Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, rentals
paid to Shenzhou Properties by the Group amounted to
RMB7,262,000.
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Supply of steam

Shenzhou Knitting and Ningbo Mingyao Environmental
Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (“Mingyao Electric Company”)
entered into a steam supply agreement on 21 December
2007, pursuant to which Mingyao Electric Company
agreed to supply steam to the Group for a period
commencing on 1 January 2008 and expiring on 31
December 2010 (the “Steam Supply Agreement”). Under
the Steam Supply Agreement, Mingyao Electric Company
has undertaken to maintain sufficient and stable supply of
steam to the Group at all times and has granted priority
to the Group to satisfy its demand for steam from time
to time. As Mingyao Electric Company does not have its
own piping system connected to the Group, the relevant
parties have agreed that Mingyao Electric Company may
first sell its steam to an independent A-share company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “A-Share
Company”) which would then re-sell the steam to the
Group. The steam price per ton to be charged by the
A-Share Company to the Group will be at the price
charged by Mingyao Electric Company to the A-Share
Company. Pursuant to the Steam Supply Agreement,
the steam price per ton charged by Mingyao Electric
Company is determined by reference to the prevailing
market price of steam supplied by independent steam
suppliers located in the Ningbo Economic and Technology
Development Zone of China, but in any event, the
steam price per ton to be charged by Mingyao Electric
Company shall not be higher than the prevailing market
price of steam in the development zone. Either party
may terminate the Steam Supply Agreement by giving 30
days’ written notice to the other party. Mingyao Electric
Company is owned as to 48% by Worldon (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Worldon”) and as to 52% by Ningbo Mingyao
Investment Co., Ltd., a party not connected with any of
the directors, chief executives, substantial shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of their
respective associates. Worldon is, in turn, owned as
to 74% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, as to 13% by Mr. Huang
Guanlin and as to 13% by Mr. Ma Baoxing. Mingyao
Electric Company is a connected person by virtue of Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, the steam
expenses paid to Mingyao Electric Company by the
Group amounted to RMB32,321,000.
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Provision of cutting and sewing services

Shenzhou Knitting and Ningbo Shenzhou Dagang
Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Dagang”) entered into a
processing services agreement (the “Processing Services
Agreement”) on 21 December 2007, pursuant to which
Shenzhou Dagang agreed to provide or procure other
companies to provide certain cutting services to the
Group for a period commencing on 1 January 2008 and
expiring on 31 December 2010 on normal commercial
terms which are no less favourable than those available
from independent third parties. Shenzhou Dagang, which
is 80% indirect owned by Worldon and 20% is owned by
Rongrong Industrial, is a connected person by virtue of
Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, the
processing services fees paid to Shenzhou Dagang by the
Group amounted to RMB11,393,000.

Supply of packaging materials

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) on 21 December 2007, pursuant
to which Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply
packaging materials to the Group from time to time on
normal commercial terms which are no less favourable
than those available from independent third parties.
The Packaging Material Supply Agreement is for a term
commencing on 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.
Huaxi Packaging Company is owned as to 87.5% by
Mr. Huang Guanquan, who is the brother of Mr. Huang
Guanlin, an Executive Director, and as to 12.5% by Mr.
Huang Fuchang, who is the father of Mr. Huang Guanlin.
Huaxi Packaging Company is a connected person by
virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rule. During the
year, the amount paid to Huaxi Packaging Company
by the Group for the purchases of packaging materials
totalled to RMB27,030,000.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the aforesaid transactions had been entered into (1) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (2) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and
(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company have
provided a letter and confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions (1) have been approved by the board of
directors of the Company; (2) are in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group; (3) have been entered into in accordance with
the terms of the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and
(4) have not exceeded the caps allowed by the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2009. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Chairman
Ma Jianrong

Ningbo, China, 27 March 2010
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To the shareholders of
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Shenzhou International
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to
171, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

BHE-_ZZhAhFE+-_A=+—HIEEE For the Year Ended 31 December 2009

—EENF —EE)N\F
2009 2008
B o ARETx AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
A REVENUE 5 6,093,485 4,822,596
55 B AR Cost of sales (4,159,229) (3,673,524)
EH Gross profit 1,934,256 1,149,072
HAth Ug A Kz U zs Other income and gains 5 47,672 66,785
SHE R SHA AR Selling and distribution costs (65,033) (54,139)
THAX Administrative expenses (403,893) (350,931)
H X Other expenses (14,056) (1,950)
A& B AN Finance costs 7 (25,393) (51,417)
B % 51 F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 1,473,553 757,420
FriS &5 2 Income tax expense 11 (220,439) (56,968)
FEERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,253,114 700,452
AR AL REfh#E e Attributable to:
UNEIETZ=DN Owners of the parent 12 1,252,030 699,380
D ER R R A Minority interests 1,084 1,072
1,253,114 700,452
BATEERKREZEE A EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EhEER2ER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 14
BN Basic AR¥1.01t AR¥0.567C
— F [Z FE — For profit for the year RMB1.01 RMBO0.56
g Diluted
—FEHHE — For profit for the year i AN/A A5 FAN/A

FEREMNRERBRE 2 FBR A HREK MM

H13HE -

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

68 HINEEEE AR AT Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statemen

BE_TETZNAF+_A=+—"HILFE For the Year Ended 31 December 2009

—EENF ZET)N\F
2009 2008
B 5 AR T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
FERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,253,114 700,452
Hih ZE U A OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REMELE Cash flow hedges:
FEELEHHTA Effective portion of changes in
NAEZEE 2 fair value of hedging instruments
BRUEBD arising during the year 25 29,701 2,407
HR4RAEZARERZ  Reclassification adjustments for
Wz EF D AFARE gains recognised in consolidated
income statement 25 (87,833) (116,676)
(58,132) (114,269)
HWEIEINEFS ZE =% Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (388) (7,311)
FEHMBEERA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
(ERBiZ) THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (58,520) (121,580)
FEEZEBRAERE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR 1,194,594 578,872
AT AT E(h#E : Attributable to:
ISNEIEZFEPN Owners of the parent 1,193,510 577,800
DEIR R Minority interests 1,084 1,072
1,194,594 578,872
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—ZETAF+-_H=+—H 31 December 2009

—EENF —EE)N\F
2009 2008
B o ARETx AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y% BB Kk Property, plant and equipment 15 2,708,796 2,273,680
+ {55 AR Land use rights 16 205,821 205,994
EREE Intangible assets 17 122,238 127,668
EEFIRE E Deferred tax assets 27 1,874 12,233
BIERE B E Total non-current assets 3,038,729 2,619,575
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
EE Inventories 19 1,185,157 732,426
Ji& Uk BR 5K Trade receivables 20 607,346 487,038
ERNRE -ZER Prepayments, deposits and
E A e W 008 other receivables 21 150,162 117,291
MTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 25 30,291 96,780
MicFEZ BB =B 2  Bank deposits with initial term of
RITF over three months 37,827 30,000
HeRREEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 22 377,717 238,141
BREEE Total current assets 2,388,500 1,701,676
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ERERREE Trade and bills payables 23 386,426 286,969
H 4th & (< ZE N BT 7K Other payables and accruals 24 392,188 283,998
MTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 25 5,584 12,960
SRR TREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 619,558 766,597
FES B E A T FRIB Due to related parties 36 2,058 1,368
FEAS R 1R Tax payable 48,718 22,013
BnEaE Total current liabilities 1,454,532 1,373,905
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 933,968 327,771
HWEERBRRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 3,972,697 2,947,346

70 HINBEEREEZERAR2AF Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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“EEAF+-_A=+—H 31 December 2009

—EENF ZETNF
2009 2008
B 5 AR TR ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FRRITEEMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 76,120 64,245
FEEFHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 881 10,128
“wIERE BE Total non-current liabilities 77,001 74,373
BEFE Net assets 3,895,696 2,872,973
R EQUITY
BATEE AE/E#EE  Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
BETRA Issued capital 28 129,717 129,717
i Reserves 29(a) 3,369,100 2,511,077
R R B AR B Proposed final dividend 13 383,678 219,593
3,882,495 2,860,387
DERRER Minority interests 13,201 12,586
BN Total equity 3,895,696 2,872,973
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
SEE HITEF
Chairman Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—_ZTZ

NWFE+ZA=+—"HIEFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2009

BRRERARL
Attributable to owners of the parent
EERS ES Hik S8
BRTRE ROEER  HAER MEE  REBR%  REEY  RERS aF  RREs L §:
Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued premium Hedging surplus  fluctuation Retained final Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total intgrests equity
W ARBTT  ARETT ARMTT ARETR  ARBTn ARETR ARETT ARETr ARETR  AR%Tn
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hiztos) (Hizo5)  (izroo(el)) (MEk29(a)i)
(note 28) (note 25)  (note 29(a)(i)  (note 29(a)(i)
RZEEN5-A-H At 1 January 2008 129,717 762,499 195,961 425,398 (12,607) 781,629 186,531 2,469,118 11,614 2,480,632
FREENNEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - (114,269 = (7,311) 699,380 = 577,800 1,072 578,872
E=ETLERBRE Final 2007 dividend declared = = = = = = (186,531) (186,531) = (186,531)
ﬁbﬁ ??/‘ \ERERE Proposed final 2008 dividend 13 - - - - - (219,593) 219,593 - - -
ERARBRA Transfer from retained profits - - 48,774 - (48,774) - - - -
RZFENFT-A=1-H At 31 December 2008 129,71 762,499 81,682" 474172 (19918 1,212,642 219,693 2,860,387 12,586 2,872,973
BREREAER
Attributable to owners of the parent
ERES Ei RaRE 34 i |
BETRE  ROEER gl 11 M RERE EHRE RERd AERE ait hRER L §:
Employee
Share Statutory Exchange equity Proposed
Issued premium Hedging surplus fluctuation benefits Retained final Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
Hit AE¥TT  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR AR#FT AB#FT AE#FT ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hf3k28) (Wkos) (o)  (AfsE29a)
(note 28) (note 25)  (note 29(e)fi)  (note 29(ail)
R-FZNE-A-R At 1 January 2009 129,717 762,499 81,682 474172 19,918) - 1,212,642 219,593 2,860,387 12,586 2,872,973
FERENAES Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (68,132) - (388) - 1,262,030 - 1,193,510 1,084 1,194,504
MY BRRRARE Dividends paid to minority
shareholders = = = = = = = = = (469) (469)
FRERE Final 2008 dividend declared = = = = = = = (219,593) (219,593) = (219,593)
Rl Employee equity benefits™ - - - - - 48,191 - - 48,191 - 48191
SINERIRE Proposed final 2009 dividend 13 - - - - - - (383,678) 383,678 - - -
RERH Transfer from retained profits - - - 126,464 - - (126,464) - - - -
RoBEAETZA=1-H At31December 2009 129,717 762,499* 23,550 600,636" (20,306) 48,191 1,954,530 383,678 3,882,495 13,201 3,895,696

* BREMBRRAFERPZEEARBEBEARE
3,369,100,000c (ZFEENF: ARK

2,511,077,0007C ) M iE & % 1

ARAR K

O AEERBE-REFBEERXARKE ™

72

48,191,0007T (54,700,000 7T #H & R 1%
BRONEXBH-_TTALF+_A=+WMA
TR BH AT HR 2 SRR T (B9.847 Tt
& 2111,217, 500%%@@‘1@%%5%}%%1
HITEE) NG BERAAR  URES
EIEEyEIxizK%IEX%&%EZEEKO
EERERINFECRE —XEIERESMAL
ERE )

RNBERERZERERA

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMBS3,369,100,000 (2008: RMB2,511,077,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group has recorded an once-off non cash expenses of
RMB48,191,000 (HK$54.7 million, equivalent to the discount of
5% on the value of 111,217,500 shares based on the closing price
of the shares of HK$9.84 per share as quoted on the Hong Kong
stock exchange on the completion date 24 December 2009) on its
consolidated income statements to recognise the contribution of the
senior management to the growth and development of the Group over
the years. Employee equity benefits reserve has been recorded in
accordance with the once-off non cash expenses.

A] Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZZNFE+-_A=1+—"BIEFEE For the Year Ended 31 December 2009

—EEhEF —EENF
2009 2008
B 5 AR T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
KEEIEBEH$/KE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
RN Profit before tax 1,473,553 757,420
FE Adjustments for:
B & A AR Finance costs 7 25,393 51,417
AU A Interest income 5 (3,555) (4,358)
HEYE  HE R Loss on disposal of items of property,
RiBIERB 2 E1E plant and equipment 6 1,699 1,950
ARE (W) Fair value (gains)/losses, net of
BB - E MR derivative instruments — transactions
METRE-TFE not qualifying as hedges
HHhER IR 6 5,339 (16,620)
LER =058 Depreciation and impairment of property,
R E NMORE plant and equipment 6 235,857 210,994
+ b {6 R A 0E Amortisation of land use rights 6 4,006 2,677
H B Amortisation of other intangible assets 6 6,749 3,941
& B Ix #1287 Employee equity benefits 48,191 -
1,797,232 1,007,421
FEE M Increase in inventories (452,731) (36,917)
JE LS AR )42 0 Increase in trade receivables (120,308) (161,267)
FENFIE EHE R Increase in prepayments, deposits and
b 8 W SR I8 38 0 other receivables (42,942) (18,021)
FERTBR R Increase/(decrease) in trade and
ZEEm, ORd) bills payables 99,457 (18,918)
E b & 5 308 K AT Increase in other payables and accruals
TR IAIE N 75,524 68,547
FETREE A TFIEIE A Increase in amounts due to related parties 690 359
2\ A FZOR D Decrease in pledged deposits - 184
KEEEFSE S Cash generated from operations 1,356,922 841,388
AT S Interest paid (25,393) (51,417)
B AR R F S PRC profits tax paid (184,265) (34,357)
REZEBFRER® Net cash flows from operating activities
2 R 1,147,264 755,614
REXKFBHELRE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
2 W F B Interest received 5 3,555 4,358
BEYE BE K Purchases of items of property,
HHEIEE plant and equipment (608,835) (497,620)
HEME  KE Kk Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
HIEIBEB 25 5IE plant and equipment 849 847
1 B - (5 R Purchases of land use rights (834) (56,678)
WS B E & Purchase of other intangible assets (2,319) (3,088)
Lk g — B & A 7 Acquisition of a subsidiary 30 (23,980) =
TSR T B Maturity of derivative financial instruments (12,715) (68,849)
HhFEZEE=1EF 2  (Increase)/decrease of bank deposits with
RiTFER (Em) initial term of over three months
Ve (7,827) 30,000
JEFHRS M IFEE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (652,106) (591,030)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BHE-_ZZhAhFE+-_A=+—HIEEE For the Year Ended 31 December 2009

—EEhEF —EENF
2009 2008
B 5 AR T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BMETHTESHEELRE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
FIERITER New bank loans 1,385,174 2,042,781
EEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (1,520,338) (2,010,389)
M AR A AR S Dividends paid to owners of the parent (219,593) (186,531)
0 > SR BROR A AR B Dividends paid to minority shareholders (469) (500)
BB EEIR LM EIFRE  Net cash flows used in financing activities (355,226) (154,639)
RERELEEYIEM  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
HEE CASH EQUIVALENTS 139,932 9,945
FHIHR e RIFESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 238,141 233,384
[EREH) 22 FEE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (356) (5,188)
FHRESRRELEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 377,717 238,141
HERBEELEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
RER D AT CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be RIETEHE Cash and bank balances 326,708 231,226
REBERE D Non-pledged time deposits with
R=EAEH original maturity of less than
45 35 10 T HATF 3K three months when acquired 51,009 6,915
B RS AR R R & Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
BemERMIZ the statement of financial position and
RekREFEY the statement of cash flows 22 377,717 238,141

74  BINEEEEZERAR2AF Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Statement of Financial

“EEAF+-_A=+—H 31 December 2009

—EEhE ZEENF
2009 2008
B 5 AR¥ T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
KRB AR ZIRE Investments in subsidiaries 18(a) 637,731 638,712
HTHEB AR ZER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 970,248 877,447
BEEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 27 1,874 12,233
BIEREE E Total non-current assets 1,609,853 1,528,392
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
JrE Uk BR TR Trade receivables 20 152,370 78,214
H A e W kI8 Other receivables 21 595,350 463,129
HeMIRESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 30,105 9,816
BRENE E Total current assets 777,825 551,159
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
ERBRR R EE Trade and bills payables 23 4,830 2,219
H {th & 5008 Other payables 24 2,505 1,346
PTESRT A Derivative financial instruments 25 5,584 12,960
FTERITREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 156,511 151,906
JE A BT /B A Rl ZRIE Due to subsidiaries 18(c) 286,532 172,690
rBrRBaE Total current liabilities 455,962 341,121
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 321,863 210,038
BEFE Net assets 1,931,716 1,738,430
= EQUITY
BETRA Issued capital 28 129,717 129,717
i Reserves 29(b) 1,418,321 1,389,120
FEOR R AR IR B Proposed final dividends 13 383,678 219,593
A Total equity 1,931,716 1,738,430
BER =M
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
*E HITEFE

Chailrman Executive Director
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Notes to Financial Statements

—TEENF+=_A=+—H 31 December 2009
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AAEH
RMBEREEZERER AT ([RAAR])
R-_ZEERFENA-_T+=HEHRZE
SEMK L AEERRER A A o 5t
= R i 3iF A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° 2" 2 & i%
ME_ZEZRF+—A-_THEEES
BEHERSZMABR AR EMR ([EHR])
ke

ARRREMBAR (KB IAEE])
FTENERERHEHBREER (8
BEK]) AKEXEMBARZFE
FHRMIFE18 ©

ESZRR ERRERARREEER
NAETEAR TEFREARLQF
(—FXREBRABS ([EBR L
51)EMKLz AR R TER (F8)
BERRABKBARE ZREERAT
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Mz 2 E) MR EREINERRQE
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mELERE
HEVBRRDIBRER LGNS
(IBEEGTMAS ) EM2BERBUHK
SEA(TBEVHHREER] - 25
PREEAMBHREEAN FEGHE
Al ([EAGER]) k2E) FEAQ
REARAUERBB RGO 2 RER
ERE-BRITEERTAERAER
BN SRR TVIRE 2K ANE G MR
H-BRIERBER TARSTHRE
RARE ([ARE]) 27 FBEHEY
BB A NEAEEREAOTA -

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”). Details of
the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 18.

In the opinion of the directors, after the reorganization of the
ultimate holding company and the immediate holding company,
Splendid Steed Investments Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), replaces Worldon (Hong
Kong) Limited and becomes the ultimate holding company of
the Company. Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in
the BVI, replaces Excelbright Overseas Limited and becomes
the intermediate holding company of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
policies generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statemen

hE+=-A=+—H 31 December 2009
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2009. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
parent company, using consistent accounting policies.

All income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intercompany transactions and intercompany balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised
accounting policies and additional disclosures, the adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no effect on these
financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27

Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS
27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment — Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations

Annual Report 09 3 77



BT R Y

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continuea)

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18 Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

Amendments

78 HINBEEEEZERAR AT Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about

Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18
Revenue — Determining whether an
entity is acting as a principal or as

an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising

on Liquidation
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs

(October 2008)

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded

Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
(adopted from 1 July 2009)

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May

2009).
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs and HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

The HKAS 27 Amendment requires all dividends from
subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities to
be recognised in the income statement in the parent’s
separate financial statements. The distinction between
pre and post acquisition profits is no longer required.
However, the payment of such dividends requires the
Company to consider whether there is an indicator of
impairment. The amendment is applied prospectively.
HKAS 27 has also been amended to deal with the
measurement of the cost of investments where a parent
reorganises the structure of its group by establishing a
new entity as its parent. The HKFRS 1 Amendment allows
a first-time adopter of HKFRSs to measure its investment
in subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities
using a deemed cost. As the Group is not a first-time
adopter of HKFRSs, the HKFRS 1 Amendment is not
applicable to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment -
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

The HKFRS 2 Amendments clarify that vesting conditions
are service conditions and performance conditions only.
Any other conditions are non-vesting conditions. Where
an award does not vest as a result of a failure to meet a
non-vesting condition that is within the control of either
the entity or the counterparty, this is accounted for as a
cancellation. As the Group has not entered into share-
based payment schemes with non-vesting conditions
attached, the amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or result of operations of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are
to be disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-level
fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments
recognised at fair value. In addition, a reconciliation
between the beginning and ending balance is now
required for level 3 fair value measurements, as well
as significant transfers between levels in the fair value
hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the requirements
for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative
transactions and assets used for liquidity management.
The fair value measurement disclosures are presented
in note 32 to the financial statements while the revised
liquidity risk disclosures are presented in note 33 to the
financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about
the components of the entity that is available to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the disclosure
of information about the products and services provided
by the segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major
customers. The Group concluded that the operating
segments determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are
the same as the business segments previously identified
under HKAS 14.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
standard separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only
details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
this standard introduces the statement of comprehensive
income, with all items of income and expense recognised
in profit or loss, together with all other items of
recognised income and expense recognised directly in
equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements. The Group has elected to present two
statements.

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18 Revenue

- Determining whether an entity is acting as a
principal or as an agent

Guidance has been added to the appendix (which
accompanies the standard) to determine whether the
Group is acting as a principal or as an agent. The
features to consider are whether the Group (i) has
the primary responsibility for providing the goods or
services, (i) has inventory risk, (iii) has the discretion to
establish prices and (iv) bears credit risk. The Group
has assessed its revenue arrangements against these
criteria and concluded that it is acting as a principal in all
arrangements. The amendment has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the revised standard, the Group has adopted
the revised standard on a prospective basis. Therefore,
borrowing costs are capitalised on qualifying assets with
a commencement date on or after 1 January 2009.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(h)

U]

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

The HKAS 32 Amendments provide a limited scope
exception for puttable financial instruments and
instruments that impose specified obligations arising on
liquidation to be classified as equity if they fulfil a number
of specified features. The HKAS 1 Amendments require
disclosure of certain information relating to these puttable
financial instruments and obligations classified as equity.
As the Group currently has no such financial instruments
or obligations, the amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment
of Embedded Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement -
Embedded Derivatives

The amendment to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 requires an entity
to assess whether an embedded derivative must
be separated from a host contract when the entity
reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category. This assessment is to
be made based on circumstances that existed on the
later of the date the entity first became a party to the
contract and the date of any contract amendments
that significantly change the cash flows of the contract.
HKAS 39 has been revised to state that if an embedded
derivative cannot be separately measured, the entire
hybrid instrument must remain classified as fair value
through profit or loss in its entirety. The adoption of the
amendments has had no impact on the financial position
or results of operations of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

1)

(k)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires customer loyalty award
credits to be accounted for as a separate component
of the sales transaction in which they are granted.
The consideration received in the sales transaction is
allocated between the loyalty award credits and the other
components of the sale. The amount allocated to the
loyalty award credits is determined by reference to their
fair value and is deferred until the awards are redeemed
or the liability is otherwise extinguished. As the Group
currently has no customer loyalty award scheme, the
interpretation has had no impact on the financial position
or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 replaces HK Interpretation 3 Revenue
— Pre-completion Contracts for the Sale of Development
Properties. It clarifies when and how an agreement for
the construction of real estate should be accounted for
as a construction contract in accordance with HKAS 11
Construction Contracts or an agreement for the sale of
goods or services in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
As the Group currently has no construction activities, the
interpretation has had no impact on the financial position
or results of operations of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

U]

(m)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 provides guidance on the accounting for
a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. This
includes clarification that () hedge accounting may be
applied only to the foreign exchange differences arising
between the functional currencies of the foreign operation
and the parent entity; (i) a hedging instrument may be
held by any entities within a group; and (iii) on disposal of
a foreign operation, the cumulative gain or loss relating
to both the net investment and the hedging instrument
that was determined to be an effective hedge should be
reclassified to the income statement as a reclassification
adjustment. As the Group currently has no hedge of a
net investment in a foreign operation, the interpretation
has had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers (adopted from 1 July 2009)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 provides guidance on accounting by
recipients that receive from customers items of property,
plant and equipment or cash for the acquisition or
construction of such items, provided that these assets
must then be used to connect customers to networks
or to provide ongoing access to a supply of goods or
services, or both. As the Group currently has no such
transactions, the interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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In October 2008,
Improvements to HKFRSs which sets out amendments

R E165%R % .

the HKICPA issued its first

to a number of HKFRSs. Except for the amendments
to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to Sell the Controlling
Interest in a Subsidiary which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, the Group
adopted all the amendments from 1 January 2009.
While the adoption of some of the amendments results
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact to the
Group. Details of the key amendments most applicable to
the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures:
Removes the reference to “total interest income” as
a component of finance costs.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies that assets and liabilities which are
classified as held for trading in accordance with
HKAS 39 are not automatically classified as current
in the statement of financial position.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Replaces
the term “net selling price” with “fair value less costs
to sell” and the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use.

In addition, items of property, plant and equipment
held for rental that are routinely sold in the ordinary
course of business after rental are transferred to
inventories when rental ceases and they are held for
sale.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(n)

(continued)

HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance: Requires
government loans granted in the future with no or
at a below-market rate of interest to be recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 39 and the
benefit of the reduced interest to be accounted for
as a government grant.

HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets. When discounted
cash flows are used to estimate “fair value less
costs to sell”, additional disclosures (e.g., discount
rate and growth rate used) are required which are
consistent with the disclosures required when the
discounted cash flows are used to estimate “value
in use”.

HKAS 38 /ntangible Assets: Expenditure on
advertising and promotional activities is recognised
as an expense when the Group either has the right
to access the goods or has received the service.

The reference to there being rarely, if ever,
persuasive evidence to support an amortisation
method for intangible assets other than the straight-
line method has been removed. The Group has
reassessed the useful lives of its intangible assets
and concluded that the straight-line method is still
appropriate.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

88 HINEEEE AR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards —
Additional Exemptions for First-
time Adopters ?

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
— Limited Exemption from
Comparatives HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters *

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment — Group Cash-
settled Share-based Payment
Transactions 2

Business Combinations

Financial Instruments ©
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23 CEMBEARE/RZE BT 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
WMEER (& HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

BEAG R B 7 5 7E° HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures ®°
F245% (&4E5T)
B gE2ER A RBE T HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
F275% (&1E5]) #Hx& Financial Statements
BB gL HEB G ER HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
E325% (EFTA) FEI2HLH T Instruments: Presentation —
H: 25— Classification of Rights Issues
BRI 7
PACHIE
BB e R HEAGERZE HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
3958 ({ERTA) 9L F LA - Instruments: Recognition and
ERREE— 5 Measurement — Eligible Hedged
B HIER 2 Items '
&aT
BB (BRI 75 HES (HER HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
REREBLZE®) S HRE R Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum
—RBE145 ZEg)RE Funding Requirement °
(BETA) F1ARRIEE S
FKRFENHZ
EHE
BB (BRI 75 [FIFEB A 7k HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
REREBELZE®) B & B E to Owners '
—RBEITHR
B8 (BBR 75 U t#Em TAEE HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
mEREZEY) A% E & with Equity Instruments *
—REBE195%
RZZTZENF+A HAEBUBHRE Amendments to Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-
BATHIIA HRIESHIFH HKFRS 5 included current Assets Held for Sale
B BB B HREE FEHRBEE in Improvements to and Discontinued Operations
Rl 2 2 59 RASIFAEEF HKFRSs issued in — Plan to Sell the Controlling
BEMBHE B—ir I E October 2008 Interest in a Subsidiary
X Bl 2555 W78 2 & 9 12 i
(BFTA) Bm 2 1E7T
BBREEIR HE— B EELH HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the
(R=ZZENEF HE#TEHE (Revised in December Length of Lease Term in respect
+ = REIEET) <572 2009) of Hong Kong Land Leases 2
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS
38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 while the
amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7,
HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 although there
are separate transitional provisions for each standard or
interpretation.

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that will impact the
amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the
period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for
as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have
no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the accounting for
losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control
of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments were made
to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 12 Income Taxes,
HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in
Joint Ventures.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27
(Revised) from 1 January 2010. The changes introduced by
these revised standards must be applied prospectively and will
affect the accounting of future acquisitions, loss of control and
transactions with minority interests.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety by
the end of 2010. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2013.

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of
related parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of
related party disclosure to government-related entities for
transactions with the same government or entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the
same government. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 24
(Revised) from 1 January 2011 and the comparative related
party disclosures will be amended accordingly. While the
adoption of the revised standard will result in changes in the
accounting policy, the revised standard is unlikely to have any
impact on the related party disclosures as the Group currently
does not have any significant transactions with government
related entities.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising from acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an asset,
initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d); or

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continueq)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.

Water use right

Purchased water use right is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of twenty years.

Operating leases - as lessee

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual land
ownership rights exist. Prepaid land premium are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight line basis
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-
sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, and derivative financial
instruments.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in other income or finance
costs in the income statement. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policy set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss to assess whether the intent to sell them in
the near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-
maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at
designation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income in
the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in other expenses.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income in
the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial assets investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other operating expenses and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the income
statement as other income in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to
hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity. The
reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group firstly
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the
income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured
or a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is to be evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the income statement — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains
or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such a derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

o fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or
an unrecognised firm commitment (except for foreign
currency risk); or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continueq)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continued)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instruments’ effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss (net of taxes) on
the hedging instrument is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income in the hedging reserve, while any
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement in finance costs.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the income statement when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss, such as when a forecast sale
occurs.

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are transferred to the income
statement. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if
its designation as a hedge is revoked, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income remain in other
comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm
commitment affects profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continueq)

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated and effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into a current or non-current portion based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group will hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a
period beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits with initial terms of three months or
less, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the
costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(c) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The Group’s contribution to the defined contribution retirement
schemes are expensed as incurred. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
schemes do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee in the current and prior periods.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”). The functional currency of certain subsidiaries located
outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these companies are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (RMB) at the exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period and their income statements
are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

Acquisition of assets

The Company assesses whether the acquisition of a subsidiary
constitutes a business combination. A business consists
of inputs and processes applied to those inputs that have
the ability to create outputs. If the subsidiary acquired does
not constitute a business, the Company accounts for the
acquisition as an acquisition of assets.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and consequently related depreciation
charges. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continueq)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment and land use rights have any indication
of impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations, while that of land use rights has been
determined with reference to independent valuations.
These calculations and valuations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills
receivable and other receivables. Provisions are applied
to trade and bills receivable and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact carrying
value of trade and bills receivable and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the years in which such
estimate has been changed.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and there
is one reportable operating segment: the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation of performance
assessment.

In the opinion of the directors, majority of the revenue was
generated from customers which have world-wide locations,
and therefore, the disclosure of location of customers would
not be meaningful in the consolidated financial statements.

99% of the non-current assets of the Group were located in the
PRC during the year ended 2009 (2008: 99%).
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net

invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and

trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

REH
Group
—EEAEF —EENF
2009 2008
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 6,093,485 4,822,596
Hn g A Other income
B8 B Government grants * 44,117 19,842
ER1TF B U A Bank interest income 3,555 4,358
47,672 24,200
U & Gains
SN Y 2 Foreign exchange gains - 25,965
DA EWREFEE Fair value gains, net:
PTETE-TFEE Derivative instruments — transactions
B IR 5 not qualifying as hedges - 16,620
- 42,585
47,672 66,785

- AT # B) £ 2 i T R 4R T AN SR
Z E2B) » BURT# Bh 3 P A5 (E (] R
RIF AR B E-

*

Government grants mainly represent incentives granted by local
government to the Group. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to the government grants.
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6. FRBiATRIE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBZBRBATFEE IR (FTA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
AEE
Group
—EEAE —EINEF
2009 2008
B & ARETR ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEFEKAE Cost of inventories sold 4,115,212 3,503,504
M- WE REE Depreciation and impairment of property,

& MR E plant and equipment 15 235,857 210,994
-t {5 R A 2 5N Amortisation of land use rights 16 4,006 2677
HibEmF & ESE Amortisation of other intangible assets 17 6,749 3,941
RIBEEHEREN 2 Minimum lease payments under

=K & FKIA operating leases:

BF Buildings 20,444 19,506
% S0 AN B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,900 1,750
EERH X Employee benefit expense (including

(BREEEH2) : directors’ remuneration):

TERF 2 Wages and salaries 1,119,591 867,705

RORET IR Pension scheme contributions 36,711 43,986

H fth 48 7 Other welfares 13,865 10,546

1,170,167 922,237
& N =R e Foreign exchange differences, net * 7,018 (25,965)
MR EEZREIRFEE  Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 1,514 18,945
N7fE (), BB Fair value (gains)/losses, net of
2 Rk
PETE-TRHEH derivative instruments — transactions
HER 25 not qualifying as hedges ** 5,339 (16,620)
AT B WA Bank interest income (3,555) (4,358)
HEWE  BENMKME  Loss on disposal of items of property,

HEB 2z B plant and equipment 1,699 1,950

* BHE_ZTZhF+-_A=1T—HEZ * The foreign exchange differences, net for the years ended 31
TEN\EFE+=_A=+—H JJ:iVZE December 2009 and 31 December 2008 are included in “Other
HEBBHEOC O AGEERE expenses” and “Other income and gains” on the face of the
[E AR | & [ H A A Rz | W o consolidated income statement, respectively.

o ﬁ;’é:%;ﬁnﬁiﬂ—:ﬂ =t+—BEk= x The fair value (gains)/losses, net for the years ended 31

/\¢+ A=1+—HBIEEFEEZRA December 2009 and 31 December 2008 are included in “Other
,L@ (Wz=) /BEEEDE 5 Rt AL expenses” and “Other income and gains” and on the face of the
SEERREREMES | K TEMWKA consolidated income statement, respectively.
&Hﬁz S A
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SN 7. FINANCE COSTS
BER ARSI : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
REHE
Group
—EEhEF —TT)N\F
2009 2008
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARAFABEERZ Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other
BITER BIR loans wholly repayable within five years
Hith &Rz F .8 25,393 51,417
EEMe 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

RIEETRANEEERRMEDIE161{E
PR AFEEZEEMEWT:

Ordinance, is as follows:

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

REE

Group
—EEhE BT )\ F
2009 2008
ARE T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ok Fees 180 180
e REEREYH = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,667 2,676
BRI F0 Pension scheme contributions 23 20
& B ixEtE A Employee equity benefits* 36,052 =
38,742 2,696
38,922 2,876
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8. EEME &) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continuea)
() BTEERBIFHTES (a) Executive directors and independent non-executive
directors
e
BER EEmE ERHE
e ENRE BRI #% Hewm
Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits equity scheme Total
Fees in kind benefits* contributions remuneration

ARBTT ARMTR AR®Tn AR®TR ARET:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—EENE 2009
WITES: Executive directors:
BEREE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 750 - 8 758
HEMLE Mr. Huang Guanlin - 576 - 5 581
BCMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 436 32,816 5 33,257
BB EE Mr. Chen Zhongjing - 436 1,618 5 2,059
BYELt Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 439 1,618 - 2,057
- 2,637 36,052 23 38,712
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
T Mr. Su Shounan 60 10 - - 70
TYELE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 10 - - 70
HERE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 10 - - 70
180 30 - - 210
180 2,667 36,052 23 38,922
* AEEEHEERaREREERE S * The Group has recorded non-cash expenses related to certain
ETEERERT ZIFREFAZIIR employee equity benefits provided to senior management in
LRAESEEZFRATER KK recognition of their individual contributions to the growth and
RER AR development of the Group over the years.
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8. EEME &)

(@) BITEERBUFHITES

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(@) Executive directors and independent non-executive

(%) directors (continued)
e
EA R RIRFTE
e BNl it 5% W@
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—TENF 2008
WITEZ: Executive directors:
BRE%E Mr. Ma Jianrong - 751 6 757
BEEMTE Mr. Huang Guanlin - 579 5 584
BEMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 439 5 444
BRRBTE Mr. Chen Zhongjing = 438 4 442
@t Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 439 = 439
- 2,646 20 2,666
BUFHITES: Independent non-executive
directors:
532 Sl Mr. Qian Feng (Resigned on
(RZZTNF 30 December 2008)
TZA=THEE 60 10 - 70
BEmadk Mr. Su Shounan (Appointed on
(RZZTNF 30 December 2008)
+=A=+H
BZE) - - - -
TEERE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 10 - 70
BEREE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 10 = 70
180 30 - 210
180 2,676 20 2,876

FRAYESEEREXRERZEAHS

2R

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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9. IEAREHFMES 9.

FREERSFHEEEE R (=%
ENF MB)EF FEF2HEFBH
M EXHES - FREHKHME (ZFTN
FZR)FEERSFMEE ZMEH

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2008: two) director, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
four (2008: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the

BT : year are as follows:
Group

—EEhE —ETNF
2009 2008
ARE T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e R REYNZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,931 2,005
RIRET B 5K Pension scheme contributions 22 10
& B IR HE 1R A Employee equity benefits 6,473 =
8,426 2,015

MENFATEBN 2 FEEREHME

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

BAE: remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:
EBEAH
Number of employees

—EEhEF —ET)N\F
2009 2008
= %1,000,0007% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 - 3
2,000,000/ 7t 22,500,000/ 7T HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 4 -
4 §
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10. R KEF 10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—EEAF —EENF
2009 2008

Bk Bk Income statement charge for
— iR R AE A 5K - Retirement benefit contributions 36,711 45,809

AEBNFEAE Z2BEE ZEKE
MEZBBBUTE B 2 RIKE 5 BIFTR
B RBZEHE AKEARERH
CRECETADLBEETEBRE L
[RAAERREREMNER LA AR
K& R -

ARG B TR IR OR B 1 DR A R AU
EERBERZARFERERRKRE
MEtE ([rEetE)zEE2E—
AAERFTBEETE - HARDZESR
EXFe s REEN XM AiRES
BEERMEANERIBRRN
BrotBE B CEEFABLER
AN BXAKENEEIRTH A
SEZEIHRRRABESEEDH#

AEZE2BRNESR -

RRBEITEEIMARLZZ2ENBE A
A M (R AR AR ([H IR
E)ERBEBEH KB RATLES
e FRAENE R (FEHR) -

B bRt 2 RN - AN SR [ B R A AR
Hi R EBNREF A AEEZ2EE-

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the Kingdom
of Cambodia, is required to contribute amounts based on
employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the retirement
benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.
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11. FTBH 11. INCOME TAX

HE_ZENFER_FTENF+ A
ST HLEFEZHBEHERAIEEXRD

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are:

A EE

Group
—EEBhEF ZEENF
2009 2008
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

R OK B 1 5 2 B Current Mainland China corporate income tax

M ([REMEHRI)  (‘CIT) 210,970 53,913
EIEFLIE (MIsE27) Deferred taxation (note 27) 9,469 3,055
220,439 56,968

REREFEVRBEEZE (—AANEF
ERIR)ENIK ARAEEREEHS
HESRTRRAR FAESHELEZX
PIARBHARBEBHAEANEHL
WA W SHIBEEH - R AR AR
BERERT BERBAELZMAG
JERT AN RIE16.6% (Z T )\ F:
16.6% ) M EBMABEFEH AR
ARABABEFEZHRBBREEAH
BHAFEEEZERRBANE  BHAF
Rt RBANEGHRBE (2T N\F:
&) -

RNRBEZBFESEMKLZMERRH
BRMMEN REASZEMEARL
EExwH (REEMMRER)  TER
RBRABESETEMNRS it K
FEREBRAA ([XF] —RREB
BREESEMKIZZMBAR)BAH
Tt

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained
an undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law
which is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to
be levied on profits or income or gain or appreciation shall
apply to the Company or its operations. As the Company
carries on business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at the rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax has been made as the Company has available
tax losses brought forward from prior years to offset the
assessable profits generated during the year (2008: Nil).

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject
to income tax as such subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the BVI. Accordingly, Top Always Investments Ltd.
(“Top Always”), a subsidiary incorporated in the BVI, is not
subject to tax.
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11.

REH &)

RERBE RRBEIREFMRT
2 BHHE 2 7 8 M R 8 A RO%H K
SRS R - R B IO R R 6 A
BENFER BN A EE A ARE
MELEERGE AR T
THEZFEH-

REBEMALZ 2EWB AR HMNE
ZAERAA (TEMNEH]) BKFE (&
B)REBRABIAEZ16.5% (ZFTFEN
F:16.6% ) NERHEERREBBELZ
AT R A B A TIR - R F A EA
MNEBEZEXF(BE)REERAAL
BERBAELETAERHAE KA E
SREENSHARBERBR(ZTTNF:
&) -

REARFEMKZz 2B B AT HMNE
AR ([N B AR RERBE
IRRFTIS T R22% 3PS B AN E 4 2 8
R BBATIE AR EFEARBMNB AR
WEN B AEEEFERRAE BIL
EH B APTS TR IR

REAREMECEMSRE ([Fd
E¥MBHRER_ZEZN\FE—A—HBHE
ERCHEBEARBEARINEREZ B
EFRBRHEESE—B25% B _TT)N
F-—A—HAE TXEEREBENCEMS
PR IR LT EEB 2% HEZEZR
AIREAN 2 FER B A GT IR B ¥ P
SEHEE HAEEETHEMBEAF
BN ZEARBEEEERNFER -
ER MM ERBEH RREE®%
CERERBERYCER -TIEAL
MEBRER T NE_F - —FHH
FHf o

1. INCOME TAX (continued)

Shenzhou Cambodia, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated
in the Kingdom of Cambodia under the Law on Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 9% and is entitled to be
exempted from income tax for the first four profit-making years.
Shenzhou Cambodia is in its fourth profitable year of operation.
It is entitled to income tax exemption in 2009.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”)
and Top Always (Hong Kong) Investments Limited, wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to
the profits tax rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax has been made as Shenzhou Trading and Top
Always (Hong Kong) Investments Limited had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2008: Nil).

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Japan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary incorporated in Japan under the Law of Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 22% of the assessable profits
arising in Japan. No provision for Japan income tax has been
made as Shenzhou Japan had no assessable profits arising in
Japan during the year.

The Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “New CIT Law”) was effective from 1 January 2008,
which unifies the corporate income tax rate for domestic and
foreign enterprises at 25%. From 1 January 2008, the PRC
enterprise income tax is provided based on the statutory
income tax rate of 25% of the assessable income of each of
these companies for the period as determined in accordance
with the New CIT Law except for certain of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, which are exempted from the PRC income tax for
two years starting from their first profit-making year, followed
by a 50% reduction in the applicable tax rate for the next three
years. The tax holidays and concessions will expire between
2009 and 2012.
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1. FREH (#) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)
MERXEGHIERABZE_ZZT AN A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of
ERZZFTZENFTZA=1T—HIERH accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
FEZHBEBABER 2 HERAT for the tax years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as

follows:
rEH
Group
—EEhEF ZZET)N\F
2009 2008
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 758 B A Profit before tax 1,473,553 757,420
LA TE 3 2 25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
(ZEZENF :25%) (2008: 25%)
AEZHIE 368,388 189,355
€ & 0 g 75 EP P Lower tax rate for specific provinces or
B2 BRRH = enacted by local authority (163,581) (134,327)
AR S Expenses not deductible for tax 5,055 1,221
R 2 I B 1R Tax losses not recognised 10,577 719
220,439 56,968
12. R FHEE A B FEB 12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT
BE_TZEANF+_A=+—HILFE The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
ZEREHE ANEGEE N BRENE for the year ended 31 December 2009 includes a profit of
AR #415,738,0007C ( ZFEZENF : A RMB415,738,000 (2008: RMB327,811,000) which has been
K ¥327,811,0007T) ' ERZAA &l B 75 dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
BERANERIE -
13. R E 13. DIVIDENDS
P YN
Company
—EENE ZET)N\F
2009 2008
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B R B AR Proposed final dividend of HK$0.35
% % %0.35% T (approximately RMBO0.31)
(HAR®0.317T) (2008: HK$0.20) per ordinary share
—ZEZ/)\F:0.20%7T) 383,678 219,593
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13.

14.

BRE (&)
AEEZ R RBIREBHADFRE
R RE B IR BB A A Bt o

SFRAAEBRRERSS ARG
BRER

BRERBHN IR R AL BRRER
BABRGEEENBRAFADETER
Bz g FIBGETE -

AR EEREAREERN Z WA R
B R RBREAT :

hE+=-A=+—H 31 December 2009

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS (continued)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the
basic and diluted earnings per share calculations:

AEHE
Group
—EERE ZEENF
2009 2008
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Pl Earnings
B A 5] % i AR AR Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
A ARMENE of the parent 1,252,030 699,380
g 4=
Number of Shares
—EEhF —EENF
2009 2008
T8’ T B
Thousands Thousands
vy Shares
FAREtESREAAR 2  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
AR InAE T used in the basic earnings per share
calculation 1,245,000 1,245,000

HE_ZZENFER_ZFENEFE+ A
Zt+—HLEFE AEETEEETZ
TRBRAEBEHBETE-

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.
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15. % -BMERRKRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEH
Group
BER BRR
BF e AE EE#E ERIRE “st
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles fixtures in progress Total
ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TRT AR%Trn AR%TR AR¥T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZEENAFE+-A=1+—-H 31 December 2009
R=ZZNF+-A=1+—H At31 December 2008 and
E_EENF-A—H: at 1 January 2009:
5% Cost 1,094,574 1,754,003 317,762 71,098 169,391 3,126,828
B ERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (107,657) (689,889) (16,035) (39,567) - (853,148)
EmFE Net carrying amount 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680
R-_ZZNE—F—R" At 1 January 2009, net of accumulated
EMRESTERRE depreciation and impairment 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680
NE Additions 19,081 298,380 10,930 10,742 313,439 652,572
W —R M B AR (H5E30)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) - - - - 20,981 20,981
HE Disposals - (1,977) (251) (320) - (2,548)
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year (60,067)  (160,273) (6,383) (9,134) - (235,857)
=R Transfers 304,840 34,243 - 11,624 (350,707) -
B 5 A Exchange realignment (17) (15) - - - (32
RZBENE At 31 December 2009, net of
+-A=f+-8" accumulated depreciation and
EMRESMERRE impairment 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
R-ZZNE At 31 December 2009:
+ZA=+-8:
XA Cost 1,418,475 2,079,668 46,753 90,568 153,104 3,788,568
2 MERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (167,721) (845,196) (20,730) (46,125) - (1,079,772)
EmFE Net carrying amount 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
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15. ¥ -BEREE 2)

NE+=-HA=+—H 831 December 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
rEE
Group
BER iR
BT e e EERRE  ERIR @it
Furniture
Plant and Motor and  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
“ZZN\E+-A=1+—H 31 December 2008
R=FF+F+=-A=1+—H At31 December 2007 and
R=ZTN\&-R—H: at 1 January 2008:
KA Cost 744,734 1,679,068 28,530 65,459 110,890 2,628,681
ZEHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (66,375)  (542,925) (13,150) (32,249) - (654,699)
FEFE Net carrying amount 678,359 1,136,143 15,380 33,210 110,890 1,973,982
RZZEN\$-A—-H" At 1 January 2008, net of accumulated
BIA R E RAE depreciation and impairment 678,359 1,136,143 15,380 33,210 110,890 1,973,982
NE Additions 133,036 86,302 11,529 6,446 278,299 515,612
L& Disposals - (2,235) (485) (77) - (2,797)
FERERRE Impairment provided during the year - (4,026) - - - (4,026)
FEMERE Depreciation provided during the year (41,357)  (152,928) (4,650) (8,033) - (206,968)
B Transfers 217,570 2,228 - - (219,798) -
L Exchange realignment (691) (1,370) (47 (15) - 2,129)
RZZENE At 31 December 2008, net of
+-A=+-8:" accumulated depreciation and
EMARTE RAE impairment 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680
RZZTN\F At 31 December 2008:
+=ZA=t-H:
KA Cost 1,094,574 1,754,003 37,762 71,098 169,391 3,126,828
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (107,657)  (689,889) (16,035) (39,567) - (853,149)
FEFE Net carrying amount 986,917 1,064,114 21,727 31,531 169,391 2,273,680

RZBEENFE+-_A=+—H K&
EEREFELO R ARK175,575,0007T
—ZTT)N\F: AR#¥156,220,0007T)
ZETEFERBEARTAER 2 —
RIRITRLE 2 R (HiFE26) ©

At 31 December 2009, certain of the Group’s buildings with
a net book value of approximately RMB175,575,000 (2008:
RMB156,220,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 26).
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16. + ith ¥ F & 16. LAND USE RIGHTS
AREFEz T EAEELCEHEET The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid land lease
ZTER T A & FRIE - B ARTEE 2 T 40 payments under operating leases and their carrying amounts
T are analysed as follows:
rEE
Group
—EEBhEF ZEENF
2009 2008
AR TR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
&N Cost:
m—H—H At 1 January 213,463 156,785
NE Additions 834 56,678
Wi —xWE QA Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30)

(KF5E30) 2,999 -
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 217,296 213,463
G i Accumulated amortisation:

m—H—H At 1 January 7,469 4,792
FEER Provided for the year 4,006 2,677
R+—RA=+—H At 31 December 11,475 7,469
BREFE: Net book value:

R+=—RA=+—H At 31 December 205,821 205,994
®n—A—H At 1 January 205,994 151,993
REE b AR R BARE I The land use rights of the Group are situated in Mainland China
LARRHRTEH AV BR 5 A © and are held under medium lease terms.
R_ZEBEENEF+_A=+—H &~%£H At 31 December 2009, certain land use rights of the Group
BREFEA A AR 32,898,0007T (= with a net book value of approximately RMB32,898,000 (2008:
=T )N\ F: AR¥23,673,0007T) 25K RMB23,673,000) were pledged to secure general banking
FriEFREEEBEAR TASERE facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

—RIBITEEZER (FFE26) °
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17. B EE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
REE
Group
B4 KR Mt
Water Use
Software Right* Total
ARET ARETT AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—EENF 31 December 2009
+=A=+—-H
R=ZZFZTNF—H—H Costat 1 January 2009, net of
2R BAR 25T accumulated amortisation
5 2,430 125,238 127,668
NE Additions 1,319 - 1,319
FEEHBERE Amortisation provided during the year (299) (6,450) (6,749)
R-ZZEZhF At 31 December 2009
P= A== 3,450 118,788 122,238
R-ZZEZIF At 31 December 2009:
+=HA=+—8:
A A Cost 3,959 129,000 132,959
RETEH Accumulated amortisation: (509) (10,212) (10,721)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,450 118,788 122,238
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7. BIEEE (&) 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

RE
Group
;i FRK#E BT
Water
Software Use Right* Total
ARETT ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—EENF 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—H
RZEZENF At 1 January 2008:
—HF—H:
(BN Cost 552 - 552
2T Accumulated amortisation: (31) - (31)
REVFE Net carrying amount 521 = 521
RZEZENF Cost at 1 January 2008, net of
—A—HZHKA accumulated amortisation
B Rk 2 51 8 521 - 521
RNE Additions 2,088 79,000 81,088
FREHER Amortisation provided during the year (179) (3,762) (3,941)
= B TR 5k IB Reclassification from a long-term
E¥ o8 prepayment - 50,000 50,000
RZEZENF At 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—8: 2,430 125,238 127,668
R-BT/N\F At 31 December 2008 and
+=-—A=+—8” 1 January 20009:
—ETNF
—B—H8:
BN Cost 2,640 129,000 131,640
2T Accumulated amortisation: (210) (3,762) (3,972)
REVFE Net carrying amount 2,430 125,238 127,668

a;iamz@@ﬂv_zz/\%uz
“HhEnhE ASEERERE M
Bzﬁsiﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁzgooooomz LA
RBUABHEEHEE 7J<é“ﬁ

ﬁﬁﬂzoi(rﬁﬁmﬁn 7@@
n¢+:ﬂz+—a~$%aiﬁ
A R #52,000,0007T (Z T ZT )\ £
AR #51,000,0007T) © gk T AR
77,000,0007T B 51 A H fth f& {5 5118 -

* $E‘< TJ%ZK%IEE ik & 2 BUF R * Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the
ZEERNFHEAGIZBEARR Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
S8 - BFEmmEAKFNBEERM three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,

Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable
price for a period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31
December 2009, the Group has paid RMB52,000,000 (2008:
RMB51,000,000), and the remaining RMB77,000,000 was
included in Other Payables.
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18. RIB AR 2 RERGTHE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

DNAIZEX LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES
(a) RHEBAAZERE (a) Investments in subsidiaries
KA F]
Company
—EEAF ZEENF
2009 2008
AR¥ T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
JE LMD AKX A Unlisted shares, at cost 637,731 638,712

FTEMNBRARZFBUWT Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
2t 1A A S 3t B IR AARELREA DL
£ EAERZER BERTRA E# B IEXBREEHR
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to  Principal
incorporation and Issued the Company activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect place of operations
KT RERUMHE 30,002 7T 100% = REER
BREMERA
Top Always British Virgin Islands, US$30,002 100% = Investment holding
limited liability
company
EREMHBERDA  HEAE. 116,000,000% 7T - 100%  RPBEARE#ER
(TEMst&]) NEBEME HEHBREER
Ningbo Shenzhou Mainland China, US$116,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Knitting Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign- knitwear products in
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) owned enterprise Mainland China
BRI REARE 2,100,000% 1 - 100%  RABEAEDRR
BRAA NEBELE HEHBREER
([t EEHE )
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear ~ Mainland China, US$2,100,000 = 100%  Print and sale of knitwear

Printing Co., Ltd.
(“Shixing Printing”)

wholly-foreign-
owned enterprise

products in Mainland
China
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18. RIB AR 2 RERL THE

NAIZER (#)

(a) RHEBARZEKRE (&)

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

2t 1A S 3t B IR AARELREAD L
£ EABEZER B RITRE E# B FEERRECEHE
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to  Principal
incorporation and Issued the Company activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BERLLNEERRF  PEKE- 140,000% 7T - 100% R BEREDRE
([4£807%E]) NEBERE HEHBREER
Ningbo Lele Printing Co., Mainland China, US$140,000 = 100%  Print and sale of knitwear
Ltd. (“Lele Printing”) wholly-foreign- products in Mainland
owned enterprise China
ERBREEBRRAF  PEKE- 10,000,000% 7T - 91%  MPEAMERE
([RmEE]) NEEERE ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ém
Ningbo Yongmian Mainland China, US$10,000,000 = 91% Manufacture and sale of
Fashion Garment foreign equity joint knitwear products in
Co., Ltd. venture Mainland China
(“Yongmian Fashion”)

ERREBEERRA  PEAE. 5,000,000% 7 - 91%  RABERERER
(TEgRE]) NERERE HEHBREER
Ningbo Shendie Fashion Mainland China, US$5,000,000 - 91% Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. foreign equity joint knitwear products in

(“Shendie Fashion”) venture Mainland China
G EREES RERTH- 30,000,000 7T - 100% RRERRER
NEBERE HEHBREER
Shenzhou Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia,  US$30,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign- knitwear products in
owned enterprise Cambodia
ERATHBRERAR FEARE. 60,000,000 7T - 100%  RPBEAREESGER
(TRF#HE]) NEBERE HEHBREER
Ningbo Dagian Knitting ~ Mainland China, US$60,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign- knitwear products in

(“Dagian Knitting”)

owned enterprise
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18. RIB AR 2 RERGTHE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

DRAIZER (&) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
(a) RHBARZKRE (£) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
2t 1A S 3t B IR AARELREAD L
a1 EAERZER BRTRA E# B IEXBREEHR
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to  Principal
incorporation and Issued the Company activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERMMHEBERDF  PEAE. 1,050,000% 7. - 100%  RAPBEAESER
([Hmrsta]) NEBERE MIstBREEm
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Mainland China, US$1,050,000 = 100%  Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign- of knitwear products in
(“Linlin Knitting”) owned enterprise Mainland China
ERERBHERAF  PEKAE. 4,000,000% 7T - 100%  RAPBEAESER
(ERER]) NEBERE MIstBREE R
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Mainland China, US$4,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign- of knitwear products in
(“Ningbo Tuton”) owned enterprise Mainland China
BN (B BRAR PEAE. 10,000,000 T - 9%  REEAEHER
(TRMstEz®l) NEEERE MIstBREEm
Shenzhou Knitting Mainland China foreign ~ US$10,000,000 = 95% Manufacture and processing
(Anhui) Co., Ltd. equity joint venture of knitwear products in
(“Shenzhou Anhui”) Mainland China
mMEHE (BN AR REXE. 8,000,000E T - 100% RPBEAERER
AR (TERMEM]) NEBERE MIstBREEm
Shenzhou Knitting Mainland China wholly-  US$8,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and processing
(Quzhou) Co., Ltd. foreign- owned of knitwear products in
(“Shenzhou Quzhou”) enterprise Mainland China
HESERHERRE  PEARE. AR - 100% RPBEAEZESDE
([58) BELENF 2,000,0007T
Shanghai Maxwin Mainland China sole RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Trading company in Mainland
Garments Co., Ltd. proprietorship China
(“Maxwin”) company
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18. RIB AR 2 RERL THE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) RMBLARIZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
2t 1A S 3t B IR AARELREAD L
£ EABEZER B RITRE E# B FEERRECEHE
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to  Principal
incorporation and Issued the Company activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ATELD B AR AR - 100% R EIAREE A B m
BREFEAR 10,000,0007T
Dagian Import & Export ~ Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Import and export of
liability company commaodities in Mainland
China
BNE S BB BREAAH 100 7T - 100% REBEHOER
Shenzhou Trading Hong Kong, limited HK$100 = 100% Import and export of
liability company commodities in Hong
Kong
XE(BB)RE BE BREARA 100 7T - 100%  REEK
AR AT
Top Always (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong, limited HK$100 = 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited liability company
EREERERA mEAE -BREE AR - 100%  POFR B KRR HE 1T AY 2K AR
AR A NG 8,000,0007T
Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing Mainland China, limited ~ RMB8,000,000 = 100% Clothing detection in
Detection Co., Ltd. liability company Mainland China
EREEEFAERAR TEKE NEBE 3,060,000% 7T - 100%  frRAE AR
(TeI1Z]) 13 RREERRER
Ningbo Chuangyi Mainland China, wholly ~ US$3,060,000 — 100%  Pre-operating in Mainland
Electronics Co., Ltd. foreign - owned China
(“Chuangyi Electronics”)  enterprise
Bl (BA) BA-AREERA 5,000,0008 7t - 100% MRARZEHATF
Shenzhou (Japan) Japan, limited liability JPY5,000,000 - 100%  Trading company in Japan

company
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18. RE AR ZRERG THE
DEZERK (&)

(b)

BTHBARZER
R-ZEZNF+-_A=1+—8 %4
THEBRRZFAEERY AER
A 2EREREERPNBEAERL
A R REK -

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

(b) Loans to subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2009, all loans to subsidiaries were
unsecured, interest-free and settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.

(c) EW HEQIRE (c) Due from/to subsidiaries
FFARRBRE BE 2 ENWS The amounts due to subsidiaries included in the
N RIRIE A AR ¥286,532,000 Company’s current liabilities of RMB286,532,000 (2008:
T (ZZEZENF: AR RMB172,690,000) respectively, are unsecured, interest-
172,690,00070) * B AEIKH - & free and are receivable/repayable on demand or within
B RAERBENRFR —FRKER, one year.
EiE-
19. 7 & 19. INVENTORIES
AEHE
Group
—EEAF —TT)N\F
2009 2008
ARET ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ¥ Raw materials 455,985 134,342
&M Work in progress 422,949 320,805
LR o Finished goods 306,223 277,279
1,185,157 732,426

Annual Report 09 3 139



BT R Y

Notes to Financial Statements
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20. EWERR 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
AEE AAT
Group Company
—8BhE <-TT)\5 C—BBAE C"ZI\%
2009 2008 2009 2008

ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

JE U BR X Trade receivables 607,346 487,038 152,370 78,214
AE Impairment = - - _
607,346 487,038 152,370 78,214
K’?Elj(ﬁﬁ DHHEUERAEZEHET  HE Majority of the Group’s sales are covered by letter of credit.
HE—RNE—Z2NEAZEZER- The remaining amounts are generally granted with credit terms
of one to six months.
RFERR BREZZAHGFE 2 EK An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
IRARE DT : reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
AEE A7
Group Company
—EENE ZEENE —EENF ZEENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARETR AR%®Tn AR®Tx ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“EAX Within 3 months 578,874 484,280 152,370 78,214
=EANE Over 3 months 28,472 2,758 - -
607,346 487,038 152,370 78,214
AR A E 2 FE IR FRER &R 2 AT 40 The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
S considered to be impaired is as follows:
r5H NN
Group Company
“EERE T\ ZBEAFE CTT)N\E
2009 2008 2009 2008
AR¥ETR ARETTT AR¥TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
W ARE AR E Neither past due nor impaired 578,874 471,802 152,370 78,214
AHOR={EA Less than 3 months past due 22,051 12,478 - -
BE=EANE Over 3 months past due 6,421 2,758 - -
607,346 487,038 152,370 78,214
A 7 460 BR SRR (B 2 FE W IR B 5T HA 3P £ Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
BEN KRR IR B - the customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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20. BWERR (#) 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
B HE I R E 2 RS IR BB T8 Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
VERFBH #ERFPRAAEENKZ number of independent customers that have a good track
AR - ERBALR AARES record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
RE HREEERUWESAEE H of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
ZEHEHRDWR B 2EUWE - REBA impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
MEBERIELREREG ANEE W& has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
P E R A R Gk sl EE M4 balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
RAEESEZH- not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
R-BZNF+_A=+—8 " EKE At 31 December 2009, the trade receivables were denominated
KA TINEREGTE in the following currencies:
x&E
Group
—EZNE —ZTENE
2009 2008
RE% AR%EH FE®  AREZSE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
T AR%Txn Tr ARETR
in 000 RMB’000 in '000 RMB’000
ETT us$ 54,554 372,510 53,074 362,739
AR RMB 234,836 234,836 124,299 124,299
607,346 487,038
b N
Company
2 13 ZTTN\F
2009 2008
FE¥  AR%EE FE®  AREBZE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Tn AR%¥Tn Tr ARETRT
in ’000 RMB’000 in 000 RMB’000
ETT us$ 22,315 152,370 11,444 78,214
FEMBE R Z BRMEHEE QN AEESE - The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate to

their fair values.
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21. ARRIE -REREMEWS 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

15 RECEIVABLES
piN- YNNG
Group Company
“EEAE —ZET\F ZBEAFE C—TTN\HF
2009 2008 2009 2008
AREBTT ARETT AR¥TR AR%Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BRFEREE Prepayments and deposits
—-BERVE — Purchase of raw materials 62,160 40,732 = =
-BEME- - Purchase of property,
L& plant and equipment 9,111 19,182 - =
-HEfRHe ke - Prepaid rental and deposits 19,720 14,563 - =
—E At - Others 425 649 - -

JFE ST % T g [ S A AR 3R VAT refund receivable and

recoverable 39,476 21,835 - -
YA THEBARRE Dividends receivable from

certain subsidiaries - - 595,262 463,041
H ot YRR Other receivables 19,270 20,330 88 88

150,162 117,291 595,350 463,129

L EEHESRT SR E - il & None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
BRFT B = B 755 B 2 B3 HA P 48 R R GE 8% The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
Z BRI H R receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
AT RIE e R E A FEWEIE 2 BRE The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other
EEEQAABERSE- receivables approximate to their fair values.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2. RERBATEEY

x5 b NG|
Group Company
“EZRE ZETN\F ZEEAF CZTTN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
AR®TRT ARETT ARETR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RBe RRT&EH Cash and bank balances 326,708 231,226 30,105 9,816
TEERAPR=ERZ Bank deposits with initial term of
BITER less than three months 51,009 6,915 = =
ReERBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 377,717 238,141 30,105 9,816

RIFERHR AEEUAREFEZR
& RRITE BN A ARE217,841,000
T (ZZFEZ)\F: AR #¥200,433,000
L) c AREARTERABAHMEY -
SR - AR IR P B b 2 1B B R AR
HE EERNETERT ANEEE
BB B UETTIE X 55 2 iR1T
BARE B AEME -

RITHERIRIRIT 2B B ERAERLES
MERBIAE - EHEFERA—BE=E
ATEZTAHHAFE RFAEEZ
BIRS 3R & ki € - WL E KRS 17 3%
M RBEA S - RITHEBREFARAL
BRALBEZEBRIEFRIT -HERR
THEEVIEREREEQRAERE-

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB217,841,000 (2008: RMB200,433,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.
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“ZETAF+-_H=1+—H 31 December 2009

23. ENRARRERE 23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REER BIEEZEETE 2 EN An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
R L EEEROMAOT end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:
rEE ADF
Group Company
i3 - Y “EEAE —ZTN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008

ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ZEEA 0 to 6 months 380,248 283,888 4,830 2,219
ANMIAE—F 6 months to 1 year 5,302 2,398 - =
—FEWE 1 year to 2 years 411 645 - -
ME E Over 2 years 465 38 - =
386,426 286,969 4,830 2,219
EREREREEBE T B - EBAERR K The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
BeEEREEERAERS- carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate

to their fair values.
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24. HAiE I8 R EFTRIE 24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

A5E b N
Group Company
“EENE ZEENE “EENE —EENE
2009 2008 2009 2008
AR¥ETRE ARBETT AR¥TR ARETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e X Accrued expenses 215,573 139,671 = =
Pk ZE (MizE17)  Payable for Water Use Right
(note 17) 77,000 78,000 - -
BENE BEKEEZ Payables for purchase of property,
[ 5RIE plant and equipment 66,297 24,995 - -
BFHEEIR RER Guarantee deposits related to
construction projects 12,977 20,613 - -
H A T 50R Other payables 11,514 5,726 2,505 1,346
XPike Customer deposits 6,168 2,057 - -
Hib i Other taxes payable 2,072 12,349 - =
ERLPERE 2R Dividends payable to minority
shareholders 587 587 - -
392,188 283,998 2,505 1,346
H e RIE R R R 2 BREEEE The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
RNABERE - EfENKIBEBRGE - approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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25. fTHEE®IA

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

“EENE
2009
rEE PiN/NE|
Group Company
BE 2& BE af
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R EEAL Forward currency contracts 30,291 5,584 = 5,584
—ZTNE
2008
AEHE VNG|

Group Company
BE BfE BE a8
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERERAN Forward currency contracts 96,780 12,960 - 12,960

EMEBRANcREERLAREMR
[@] o

BEHRERSN-BERBYH M
R_EZNF+_A=+t—08 F~5E
REETEREEAK BERERS
BRABINEFHEZHPRE-

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
same as their fair values.

Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges

At 31 December 2009, the Group held certain forward currency
contracts designated as hedges in respect of expected future
sales to overseas customers.
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NE+=-HA=+—H 831 December 2009

TTEE®mIE (2
BHERAN-BSRBYMN (&)

AEBEIRBHAZHEEARER RS
BEMEHZFH - AEBEEFH =T
NETBE B & IHERBEE R E 2 A
EH RAETHSBER -BEFBEARKE
58,132,000 (ZZEZNF  BEAR
#114,269,0007T ) & N 51 75 2 5F A

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges
(continued)

The terms of the forward currency contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the expected future sales.
The cash flow hedges relating to expected future sales in the
year 2009 were assessed to be highly effective. Net losses
of RMB58,132,000 (2008: losses of RMB114,269,000) were
included in the hedging reserve as follows:

fré 78 :

—EENFE —TTNF
2009 2008
AR¥ T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR R E 2 Total fair value gains included in
ANRBERREE the hedging reserve 37,578 1,703
ANABEREZEETIE Deferred tax on fair value gains (7,877) 704
HHEMEEBAEZFDHE Reclassified from other comprehensive
I8 a R PR income recognised in the income
statement (104,067) (128,215)
BH OB ZEER B AB  Deferred tax on reclassifications to
profit or loss 16,234 11,539
ReREL P2 EBEFHE Net losses on cash flow hedges (58,132) (114,269)

AN REBRET N T AR A E P
EZEAMINE S L) ZFINES DIEA
REGETEXRABREELE  RE
REEEBAGAABLEBFERR
SHFRBAE - FFEPEBITETA
Z AR E#EREE ARKS5,3839,000
T ERFREERZAHKR(ZEE
I\ W zs A R#16,620,0007T) ° A=
TEZNF+=ZA=+—H AEEEH
K F & N & #7893,500,000% 7T (=
T T J\ 4 : 273,500,000 7T ) * B EA B
NF—EMAZE223MEA (ZZEENF:—
BMAZ+M®EA) -

In addition, the Group also enters into other foreign currency
contracts which do not qualify for hedge accounting. Such
foreign currency contracts are settled based on the extent of
the appreciation of the RMB against the USD exchange rates
as management forecasts that the rate of such appreciation will
be lower than that forecasted by the counterparty. Changes in
the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to
loss of RMB5,339,000 were charged to the income statement
during the year (2008: gain of RMB16,620,000). As at 31
December 2009, the Group held outstanding foreign currency
contracts of US$893,500,000 (2008: US$273,500,000) with
maturity periods ranging from 1 month to 23 months (2008:
from 1 month to 10 months).
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26. st ERITREMEER

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS
rEE
Group
“EEZhE —TENE
2009 2008
ERNE(E) HEA ARET ERA=(E) H8A ARETT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
ik Current
ROER-BER Bank loans - unsecured 3.65-437 Z—E-FF 150,000 438558 ZZTNE 622,386
2010 2009
ROTER-BHH Bank loans - unsecured fwRBTRAE —T-BF 177,532 CEETIEE - 2 119,606
1 5 £4+0.80-2.00 8 %+41.00-4.00
Libor+0.80-2.00 2010 Libor+1.00-4.00 2009
ROTER-BER Bank loans - unsecured ERRTAEY —2-%F 49,308 - - -
FEZ+2.00
Hibor+2.00 2010
RITEN-EEA Bank loans - secured 218-273 Z—E-EF 118,594 - - -
2010
RITER-FHHA Bank loans - secured RARTEAE —T-F% 98,054 - - =
1 5 £4+1.00-2.00
Libor+1.00-2.00 2010
RARTERZ Current portion of long term BB TRE EEEIEES
eSS -HHA bank loans - secured FEE41.00 =B-FF 26,070 FEXH00 ZZEENEF 24,605
Libor+1.00 2010 Libor+1.00 2009
619,558 766,597
E ik | Non-current
HitBHEABTER  Other secured bank loans RABTRAE —F-—-F% RIRTAEX —T-TEZF 64,245
KEER4,00 =Z-=F 36,620 KEX4100 —EB-—-F
Libor+1.00 2011-2012 Libor+1.00 2010-2012
Hi BHABETEFR  Other secured bank loans * ZE-NF 39,500 - - -
2014
76,120 64,245
695,678 830,842

* TRARRTEMZ=ZEZRFHER
EERNEGTEI0%

10% discount of benchmark interest rates for loans with periods

of three to five years announced by People’s Bank of China
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26. ;FERITRHEMEE #) 26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)
YN
Company
ZEEhE ZZTN\E
2009 2008
ERAE(E) B ARET R ERFZ () 38R ARBTT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ik} Current
FOER-BER Bank loans - unsecured wHERTEE -B-3% 18,436 RARTRE ZTINE 102,520
1 £ £41.50-2.00 FEEL1.00
Libor+1.50-2.00 2010 Libor+1.00 2009
ROTER-BER Bank loans - unsecured EERTRAE -2-3% 49,308 - - -
FEE4+2.00
Hibor+2.00 2010
ROER-BER Bank loans - secured RABTRAE -F-Z% 88,767 = = =
FEE+1.00
Libor+1.00 2010
ROTER-BER Bank loans - unsecured - - - 438% —ZTNE 49,386
2009
156,511 151,906
r5E b NG|
Group Company
—EENE “ETNE “EENE —EENE
2009 2008 2009 2008
AR®T R ARETT AR®TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bnhk: Analysed into:
BRI HREERZ Bank loans and overdrafts
ROERRER repayable:
—ERHIEENK Within one year or on demand 619,558 766,597 156,511 151,906
FF In the second year 26,070 9,568 - =
F-EFRE In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(RHEERF) 50,050 54,677 - -

695,678 830,842 156,511 151,906

Annual Report 09 3% 149



BT aR Y at

Notes to Financial Statements

—TEENFE+=_A=+—H 31 December 2009

26.

SFTESRITREMEBE (&)

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

AEEZBEREEERARE
3,314,097,0007T (ZEE N\ :

A R #3,248,003,0007T) * EH
A R #695,678,0007T (—ZZT T )\
F: AR #830,842,0007T) B R
MEMARBA - RBEHR KB
AEEREEE (XRNE TK
%) B AR¥2,618,419,0007T (=
ZENF: AR¥2,417,161,000
JT) °

AEBETROEBEEURESE
EEFktrHERAE(RERE
HRZBEEBBEORARE
208,473,000 (ZZEZEN\F: A
R #179,893,0007T ) 2 1% 18 {E 1K
17 (KM sE15 R M sE16) °

AEBRARBZETRITEES
NBEARBEEZEH 2 AEMER

o

k]

wEEARM189,500,000
(Z2ZNF:ARH%
573,000,0007t) 2 & T RITEE
AAREEEIN BEEUET B
TR B ITETE -

>

BORROWINGS (continued)

(a)

The Group’s borrowing facilities amounting to
RMB3,314,097,000 (2008: RMBS,248,003,000), of
which RMB695,678,000 (2008: RMB830,842,000)
had been utilised as at the end of the reporting
period. The unutilised borrowing facilities, subject to
certain conditions, was RMB 2,618,419,000 (2008:
RMB2,417,161,000) as at the end of the reporting period.

Certain bank borrowings of the Group are secured by
mortgages over the Group’s buildings and land use right,
which had an aggregate carrying value at the end of
the reporting period of approximately RMB208,473,000
(2008: RMB179,893,000) (note 15 and note 16).

Certain bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are secured by the companies controlled by the directors
of the Company.

Except for certain bank borrowings with an aggregate
amount of RMB189,500,000 (2008: RMB573,000,000)
which are denominated in RMB, the borrowings are in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Euro.
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27. EERIE

27. DEFERRED TAX

ERBEAHNITHEMNGREBIAE E R
M EEEEE  BREMSH SR
[l — Bt B R 2 1B T - B AT iR R Ay
GHEELRBFELMREH-

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority.

rEE NN
Group Company
“EERE “ZTNE “ZERE —ZTENE
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARETT ARETTT AR®T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EERBEE Deferred tax assets 7,734 17,203 1,874 12,233
ERETIEAE Deferred tax liabilities (6,741) (15,098) = =
RERIEEEFE Deferred tax assets net 993 2,105 1,874 12,233
R BN HRR REAT Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:
N | NG
Group Company
“EERE “ZENEF “EENE —TTNEF
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARETT ARETTT AR®ET R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EREFREEE Deferred tax assets 1,874 12,233 1,874 12,233
ERETEAR Deferred tax liabilities (881) (10,128) - -
EEHBEEE,/ (BfE)FHE Deferred tax assets/(liabilties), net 993 2,105 1,874 12,233
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27. BEBIH (#) 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
BEFMSTER < BEFMT The gross movements on the deferred tax accounts are as
follows:
AEE ¥ UNC
Group Company
“EThE ZZTNE “ZENE —ZTNE
2009 2008 2009 2008

ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

F1 At beginning of year 2,105 (7,083) 12,233 26,689
RAFERERMRZ Deferred tax charged to
ERFIE (1) the income statement during
the year (note 11) (9,469) (3,055) (10,359) (14,456)
RAFERERFALZ Deferred tax credited to equity
REH R during the year 8,357 12,243 - =
F IR At end of year 993 2,105 1,874 12,233
RERBEERBERFAZEZE (K The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
ST REEBRB G RDEER AN Z &) the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
N balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
(a) EEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
X5E
Group
AR
HKHAZER
RABZER HE Bt Mt

Loss available
for offsetting
against future

taxable profits  Impairment Provisions Total
AREBTT ARETE ARETT AR®Tn
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-_EENFE—A—H At 1 January 2008 26,689 526 465 27,680
BC$¢ [EE% % (30K)/ Deferred tax (charged)/credited
AR IE to the income statement
during the year (14,456) 683 3,296 (10,477)
RZEENE At 31 December 2008
+-RA=+—H 12,233 1,209 3,761 17,203
WAREEBRRE (F1K),/  Deferred tax (charged)/credited
FAZERTIE to the income statement
during the year (10,359) 120 770 (9,469
R-ZENE
+=H=+—-8 At 31 December 2009 1,874 1,329 4,531 7,734
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27. EEBIE (&)

(a)

EERBEE (&

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(@) Deferred tax assets (continued)

AT
Company
AARKER#
FERBLFIE 2 BB

Loss available

for offsetting against
future taxable profits

ARETT
RMB’000
RZZEZENF—-H—H At 1 January 2008 26,689
RARFEEEFZRNG ZIELEFRE  Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year (14,456)
RZZBEZENF+_A=+—HZ Gross deferred tax assets at
RAETIBE ELRE 31 December 2008 12,233
REAFERRENRZ Deferred tax charged to the income
RIET A statement during the year (10,359)
RZZETZNFF+ZA=+—H2Z Gross deferred tax assets at
RERIEE EBE 31 December 2009 1,874

AARIRBBEEZHEBRAA
R#11,356,0007 (=TT N\F:
A R #80,036,0007T ) * A] £ R 5
RARBELEBERAERER
RERRFE - EEZRE AQA]
15 ¥E 75 75 B R 2R FE 2R A 1 B DA &
REEHREEE - Bt - BALXQ
AREERBZEEHEBEEAR
#1,874,000c (ZZEZT\NF: A
R #12,233,0007T ) 7A ¥ &5 HA R HE
RBARK o

The Company has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of RMB11,356,000 (2008: RMB80,036,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the Company in which the losses arose. In the
opinion of the directors, the Company will have sufficient
future taxable profit to utilise the tax losses carried
forward. Therefore, deferred tax assets of RMB1,874,000
(2008: RMB12,233,000) in relation to the tax losses of
the Company are recorded as at the end of the reporting
period.
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27. IEERIE (&)

(b) EEHERME

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

r5E
Group
RERE FEHHEY
g e fTETE ey
Non-hedging
Cash flow currency
hedges derivatives Total
ARBT T ARBT R ARET R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZEZENF—HF—H At1 January 2008 27,341 7,422 34,763
RAFERRTAZ Deferred tax credited to equity
FAERTE during the year (12,243) = (12,243)
MAREFZBZHRAZ  Deferred tax credited to the income
EERIA statement during the year - (7,422) (7,422)
RZETN\F At 31 December 2008
+=ZA=+—-H 15,098 - 15,098
RAFE#ERTAZ Deferred tax credited to equity
EET IR during the year (8,357) - (8,357)
R-ZZBZBNF At 31 December 2009
+=—HA=+—H 6,741 - 6,741

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—H BERH
RNEBP A B ARRER 2B A RZER

REMB 2z RKELRF 2 EAENR

MERECERE - E2RE ZEWB
RARAI RGR D IRZERBF 2 A ge it
AR RZBZNFE+=A=+—8"
B3R B K BE M B A Bl 2 EERIELER 8
BEZRAZEREZBRASNBARE
1,780,345,0007C (ZZEEN\F : AR
594,404,0007T ) °

ARRBRAEBRRNBRELEAEHRE
%O

At 31 December 2009, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totaled
approximately RMB1,730,345,000 at 31 December 2009
(2008: RMB594,404,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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28. IR 28. SHARE CAPITAL
% 43 —EENE —EEN\F
Shares 2009 2008
TET AR®Tx TET ARETR
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
AT Authorised:
3,000,000,0008% (ZZZ/\F:  3,000,000,000 (2008:
3,000,000,0008% ) 3,000,000,000) ordinary
BREEI10E T TR shares of HK$0.10 each 300,000 312,000 300,000 312,000
BEIRAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,245,000,0008% (ZZFZ\F:  1,245,000,000 (2008:
1,245,000,000/% ) 1,245,000,000) ordinary
FREE.10E T2 T @k shares of HK$0.10 each 124,500 129,717 124,500 129,717
29. f#1E 29. RESERVES
(a) A&£H (a) Group

AEEREARBEFEZHES
BREZHE2INYHRRF6
RTEGCEREE K-

(i) ZEBBALAEE ([ZEEE
_EZ])
RIBH B A RE R BEAE
MEBARZABERMA
EHRBEAMENERQRAR/R
BRPB ARG RAUBEE L
BRI & AE10% A EEE
BH B BEEFMLE
SEDPBEAREMB ARG
B AN 2 50% 2% Lk © & 2 0%
ERBAEE A AR N
RBEA EERNMEIRZ R
TROREMBA225% -

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 6

and 7 of the financial statements.

(i)

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the articles of association of the Mainland China
Subsidiaries, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are
each required to allocate 10% of their profit after
tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
generally accepted accounting principles, to the
SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the Mainland China Subsidiaries. Part
of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-
up capital, provided that the remaining balance
after the capitalization is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.
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29. @& (&)
(a) XE®E (&)
(i) EXRBEE
P 3% B 15 45 P Ve 6% I 22
BN B AT 2 M B wRE

EECELZER-
(b) E2ATF

29. RESERVES (continued)
(@) Group (continued)
(i) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

(b) Company

ERE Bk

izt ROREERE  RARE #E REEN AR B3t
Share Exchange Proposed
premium Capital  fluctuation Retained final

Note account surplus reserve profits dividend Total

ARETR ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETZT ARETE
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000

RZZENE-A-AH At 1 January 2008

762,499 727,430 (125,094) 67,018 186,631 1,618,384

FEZAKAGE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (150,951) 327,811 - 176,860
“EELESERSRE  Final 2007 dividend declared - - - - (86531)  (186,531)
“ZE\FRERARE Proposed final 2008 dividend 13 - - - (219,593) 219,593 -
RZZTNE At 31 December 2008
+-A=+-H 762,499 727,430 (276,045) 175,236 219,593 1,608,713
FE2AKALE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = (2,859) 415,738 - 412,879
“TT)\ESEREME  Finel 2008 dividend declared - - - - (19593  (219,599)
“SENFRERBRE  Proposed final 2009 dividend 13 - - - (383,678) 383,678 -
RZZENE At 31 December 2009
+=-A=t-H 762,499 727,430 (278,904) 207,296 383,678 1,801,999

30. i —EMHE QA
R_ZZNF=ZA AEBERBILE=
FUEBIZ100% AR  BIRESRE
A A R #23,980,0007T ° 1 U B A1 - Al
BWEEKTS WH s E—BNAK
BREMEAEZEFR—BEE -
HRETTREEBZEER MREXR
SARTIEWEEE -

30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

In March 2009, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest of
Chuangyi Electronics from an independent third party at a total
cash consideration of RMB23,980,000. Before the acquisition,
Chuangyi Electronics had no business activities. The sole
purpose of the acquisition was to acquire buildings and a piece
of vacant land owned by Chuangyi Electronics. As it does not
meet the definition of a business, this transaction is accounted
for as an acquisition of assets.
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30. WiE—EHMEBAE (&2) 30. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
RKEBE - Bl 2R BRI EEEDE 2 The fair values of the identifiable assets of Chuangyi Electronics
AAREREERERN 2 EEEREES: allocated as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding

carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were:

o
ARE B EIREE
Fair Previous
values carrying
allocated amount
Bt 5 ARETT ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BB EEFE: Net assets acquired:
ME - BB MR Property, plant and equipment 15 20,981 22,885
{5 A 4 Land use right 16 2,999 3,272
23,980 26,157
LATF A XA Satisfied by:
B& Cash 23,980
FRWE—HNBARIZREREESE An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
BEMREFEZOMOT respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:
R ULEE B
As at the
acquisition date
ARBTT
RMB’'000
EfRRERE Cash consideration paid (23,980)
EBEWE—MHBARZES R Net outflow of cash and
ReZEYWREFRAE cash equivalents in respect of
the acquisition of a subsidiary (23,980)
BUYEREE Al XEHASEE From the date of the acquisition, Chuangyi Electronics’s results
EZTTNFFTA=T—HIEFEZ have had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
RAEWASFIBEITmERTE- revenue or profit for the year ended 31 December 2009.
R-BZNF+_A=+—8 " 8&L At 31 December 2009, Chuangyi Electronics has not
ERATMER- commenced any operations.
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31. ZREBHIE s 2EMIT A
REEHR SHEHeMTAZEEE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

PONE instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
BMKEE Financial assets
rE
Group
—EENF ZEENF
2009 2008
ERR BERK
FE W 1B J& Uk SR IR
Loans Loans
and and
receivables receivables
AR® T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
JiE g BR 3R Trade receivables 607,346 487,038
TaFria=EAaz Bank deposits with initial term of over
RITFER three months 37,827 30,000
ReRBRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 377,717 238,141
1,022,890 755,179
BkaE Financial liabilities
r5E
Group
“EEAE “ZINF
2009 2008
REHERA g Szl
BiEEEY tEZ RKEEEL e
HEaRE HEaRE @it BBaE %Ak @it
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
held for ~ amortised held for amortised
trading cost Total trading cost Total
AR¥Tn ARETrn AR%Tr AREBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
LT ES Trade and bills payables - 386,426 386,426 - 286,969 286,969
ERBEEALTE Due to related parties - 2,058 2,058 - 1,368 1,368
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments 5,584 - 5,584 12,960 - 12,960
STERIREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 619,558 619,558 - 766,597 766,597
Hi R Other payables - 174,543 174,543 - 131,978 131,978
5,584 1,182,585 1,188,169 12,960 1,186,912 1,199,872
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3. REFE P ZEMIAE (#) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

MKEE Financial assets
NN
Company
—EEAF —EENF
2009 2008
=795 ERxRk
e R JE W3R
Loans Loans
and and
receivables receivables
ARETR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
H h FE U 5k IE Other receivables 595,262 463,041
JE W AR 53R Trade receivables 152,370 78,214
RehFeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 30,105 9,816
777,737 551,071
g S=KiE Financial liabilities
VNG|
Company
“ZThE ZZTNF
2009 2008
s E b £
BEEEZ B E BEEEL KA E
HEEE <HEER @t BEaE <HBEEE @it
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities  liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
held for amortised held for amortised
trading cost Total trading cost Total
AR®TR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETT ARETR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FERHBARTE Due to subsidiaries - 286,532 286,532 - 172,690 172,690
G ES Trade and bills payables - 4,830 4,830 - 2,219 2,219
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 5,584 - 5,584 12,960 - 12,960
SERITRAMEE Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings - 156,511 156,511 - 151,906 151,906
EL L E Other payables - 2,505 2,505 - 1,346 1,346
5,584 450,378 455,962 12,960 328,161 341,121
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32. AREE
$%l1%?ﬂ%ﬁ»%i&&§@ﬁ
TEZARME:

E—fF RERAEREERNEED
Y BB (REAR)HEY
ARE

—f BRUHEERENEERESY
BABBHISAABEE
A E EERGHEZA
/Lfg

E=F BUFENTEERTEEE (T

AERBARE) REEFE
ZRBEANEBEEEATEZ
HEXDFHEZARE

R-ZZBEZAF+-_A=+—H X&E
FETINEARBEAEZERITA:

R-ZEZNFT_A=+—BEIRE
SFEZAE:

32. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation technigues
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs)

As at 31 December 2009, the Group held the following financial
instruments measured at fair value:

Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009:

£—1 -t 1 E=8& @t

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARETR ARETR ARET R ARETR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 5,584 - - 5,584

HE_ZZNAF+_A=+—HBIH&
B HERE=HRALEFEZHATH
B HNEEE o

During the year ended 31 December 2009, there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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32.

33.

RABRBH (&)
R-SBAFT=A=t-ARARE
HEZAR:

RZZBEZNRE+-_A=+—H X217
FETIRAARBEFEZERTA:

hE+=-A=+—H 31 December 2009

32.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2009:

As at 31 December 2009, the Company held the following
financial instruments measured at fair value:

-1 -/ F=1 Bt

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AREFTL AREFT ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 5,584 = = 5,584

BE-ETAF+-A=t+—AL%F
g BmAREHERE-RRE-M
P LA FE PRSP

MEEEEERFERBER

BOTETAES AEEZTESRTA
BRRITERME S A RERFR %
FEMITATESERAEHZERR
FrBEs AKENEEMUMBEER
BE PIMEEERELZBREERT K
JEAS BRAK -

REBTETTETIARS FEBE
EHEBAN - BMATEASEEE
EEZEERER -

AEESRMIAELZ T E2RR AN X
R SNERR EERRERDES
R EFZEHMBERRAEEL
MR IERRE  BRABEN T XHa - A
SEEBITET R 2 ST HRRENUH
HRME2.4

33.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and short-term time
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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33. EREREERRBE

(#&)

R R @ b
AEEEHMISHN LB EEHR
AEEFERPEHRRETAR-

TRINTRBEMR EMEEMBE
TEZBERT BEMEAREEFHE AR
S BRRBLAT A E R AN R E s 2 BURRE
AT o

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonable possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax and the Group’s equity.

rE
Group
E& B Bt A FI B
tHTHR #&NORL) #EmS OGRS
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
decrease in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity
AR¥T R AR¥T R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZEBAEF 2009
WA= 3R If interest rate increases +50 (381) (381)
BAF] =T R I interest rate decreases -50 381 381
—EENFE 2008
INF) &= _EHR If interest rate increases +50 (321) (321)
AT E T F If interest rate decreases -50 321 321

SMEE L B

AEEEHRZZFEERER % FE R K
BIREERSARB CEEEMIAET
ETZHE - AEEN82% (ZFFTN
F:81% ) HENUXRTTAHE L AZFL
LSEUET ARBEERTELEEN
BRERERSHN OEREHRKE
EmH ZIMNER K

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales denominated in US$ by operating
units of which the functional currency is RMB. Approximately
82% (2008: 81%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in US$
and undertaken by these operating units. The Group requires
the major operating unit to use forward currency contracts to
eliminate the foreign currency exposures on the forecast future
sales.
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— ==

33. BiIEREEEEREEK &)

SNERBR (F)

BAKE 2 BR  AREMIAR ZHME
ERRITAETACEN UESHEAK
EI VD

R-ZZNFE+-_F=+—H0 K&EH
¥ A (& 8928,000,000FE 7T ( ZZEE )\
£ :273,500,000% 0) 2 R EE 4
4 HEERFRBBEREBINEEHE
Z YRR

PO AREE IS T AR E P gs
EZ HMINE S K - ZFINE S KIEA
RESETEXRAEBRELE R
EAEREETENSGBAELXRBER
RPEUFBAE - R_BETNF+=
A=+t—H XAEBEFEERFEINE
& #9893,500,000% 7t (=T Z )\ F :
273,500,000% 7t ) - B/ EIH N F— @A
Z23EAA (ZZEENF:—@AE+E
A) e

TRIRAME K - EFA LB
TEZERT ABIMEERTEES
7 8 3 AT U 2 GO AE AT (
REBBERBEZAREHE) -

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continueq)

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise
the hedge effectiveness.

At 31 December 2009, the Group held forward currency
contracts of US$928,000,000 (2008: US$273,500,000)
designated as hedges in respect of expected future sales to
overseas customers.

In addition, the Group also enters into other foreign currency
contracts which do not qualify for hedge accounting. Such
foreign currency contracts are settled based on the extent of
the appreciation of the RMB against the USD exchange rates
as management forecasts that the rate of such appreciation
will be lower than that forecasted by the counterparty. As at 31
December 2009, the Group held outstanding foreign currency
contracts of US$893,500,000 (2008: US$273,500,000) with
maturity periods ranging from 1 month to 23 months (2008:
from 1 month to 10 months).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

St BE = H BRBLAT
EH T MEze
Increase/
decrease in Effect
foreign on profit
currency rate before tax
% AR T T
% RMB’000
—EEhAE 2009
M AREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (249,439)
i A R 5, = Tl B If RMB weakens against US$ -5 249,439
—BENF 2008
MAR® K ETLHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (102,276)
W AREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 102,276
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BREREEEEREE &)

FERRE
AEBERNAREBRFZF=TE
TRZ -BAKBEZBER FTBRIEE
EMETRGZER LEAKBEER
BEREF- ﬁtﬁl\’ﬂi’il%iig?éﬁ’%ﬁﬂﬁl?x
RiEs BASEEY 2 RRERIL
EK°¥¢E§§E3FPA$H%§#“‘M””LLZUJEK
B EZRS BIFREEEHIE
BRRME BAAEETGRTEER
o

ERAEBEEMTHBEE(RERS
REETFR - HtEUGRIEA RIEA A
Bt \BR2UMBEE) ELEZEER
B AEEEH 2 EERRRERZH
7 HERGRIE BT R i = BB AR S R %
ETHEZIRMEE-

HRAAEEREMZAEERFZE=
HTETR G BALBAERR - FES
FRBREEE /RHGUFEE - RIS
HR AEEREETEESRER -
AREHEI% (ZEENF:12%) R
71% (ZZTZT)N\F  71% ) RUBR K5 Bl
REREBEZREAZRFRAARFE H
RAEBZEERFPHAERMRES
mEZ AR BERBEEY RBEKH
R AL AEEAZEERETEE
E R -

FRAKBERERBREERZEER
#— i%k%ﬂ%ﬁ’éﬁﬂ%i&%%‘aﬂo%&
F& o

REE SRR

REBEFZBBERRDESFTE T AR
EeRmrER FRATIAZRESHT
H R & E (B a0 e W BR ) 2 2 5
AARKEEEB 2BTHEERE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Group, which comprise cash and short term
deposits, other receivables and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 9% (2008: 12%)
and 71% (2008: 71%) of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. As the major customers of the Group
are all companies with world-famous brand, and long-term
business relationship has been established by both parties,
certain concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the
Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
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33. KEMEEBZERBE (#) 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Liquidity risk (continueq)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

REBESERE (&)
REEHR - RIBC 7T A BT H 3RGH
E AEEMBREEZIHABRN

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

T undiscounted payments, was as follows:
r5E
Group
“EENE
2009
~EAZE
REX  ORAEA SRT=EA -EWE MENL i
6 to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTz AR%Tr AR%TRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
STRRITREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 504,669 114,889 26,070 50,050 695,678
EREFRER Trade and bills payables - 380,248 5,302 411 465 386,426
HitERFE Other payables 174,543 - - - - 174,543
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments 5,584 - - - - 5,584
180,127 884,917 120,191 26,481 50,515 1,262,231
r5E
Group
ZETNE
2008
~ERZE
REX  SRAEA SRTZEA —EZMF ME L £ @t
610
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETR AREFRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HERITRAMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 503,244 263,353 9,568 54,677 830,842
G ES Trade and bills payables - 283,888 2,398 645 38 286,969
E L R Other payables 131,978 - - - - 131,978
fTE¢BTA Derivative financial instruments 12,960 - - - - 12,960
144,938 787,132 265,751 10,213 54,715 1,262,749
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33. iIEREEEEREE (£ 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

REBESERE (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
LN
Company
ZEENF
2009
~EAZE
RER  SRAER SRT=HEA -EWE MENL B3t
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

SEBTRAMES Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 156,511 - - - 156,511
G ES Trade and bills payables - 4,830 - - - 4,830
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments 5,584 - - - - 5,584
5,584 161,341 - - - 166,925
NG|
Company
—TRNE
2008
~MEAZ
ZEX  ORAER SRTZERA —EmME MELE @it
6to
Less than less than 1102 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
SRR REMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings = 161,906 = = = 161,906
EREAREE Trade and bills payables = 2219 = = - 2,219
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 12,960 - - - = 12,960
12,960 154,125 - - - 167,085
EXEE Capital management
AREEEAREE 7 +EHIEEREENR The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
EEFELEZEENRERRTERL safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
R UTRFEEBRREAREFRRAE and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
B business and maximise shareholders’ value.
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33. IERMEEEEREE (&)

BEAREE (£)
AEBEBBREERZISHERE RARE
HEAREE BERSIFARERERS -
AEBARERAZERARERMNZKE [
BRREBEARBFITTR - BE-TZT
NWFE+—A=+—"HBE-_ZEZTN\F+=
A=+—HLEFE ERBEEELKNE
Z BRI EES-

AEERBEAAGBLE (AEKFE
BREABBEMEGFE)EEER A
BERERABRTREAMEER B
R R R E - E Al R A 5R0R M AT 50R
AR ENEEALRR BRERES
FEW - BEABRESRAEE ARGRE
= B EE RREHR EXRE
R

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Capital management (continueq)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2008.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to related parties, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent less
the hedging reserve. The gearing ratios as at the ends of the
reporting periods were as follows:

AEE

Group
—EEhEF —ETNF
2009 2008
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FrERITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 695,678 830,842
ERERREE Trade and bills payables 386,426 286,969
Hith fE ZIB N JEEHFIE  Other payables and accruals 392,188 283,998
&~ BEE A 53008 Due to related parties 2,058 1,368
BoBHERBEEEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (877,717) (238,141)
B F 5 Net debt 1,098,633 1,165,036
B RARHE AEGER Equity attributable to owners of the parent 3,882,495 2,860,387
R G Hedging reserve (23,550) (81,682)
KR E N BT Total adjusted capital 3,858,945 2,778,705
BEARERFHE Capital and net debt 4,957,578 3,943,741
BERAGBLE Gearing ratio 22% 30%
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34. AiE 34. COMMITMENTS
(a) REHERIE (a) Operating lease commitments
REERBIIHEESCEHELH The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
HEERETHAEMERKE - under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.
RZZBZNFE+ZA=+—H =& At 31 December 2009, the Group had total future
EERENATRMELSCEHEREN aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
ZARKEHESHEBEMOT cancellable operating leases as follows:
AEE
Group
—EEhEF —EENF
2009 2008
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F RN Within one year 20,839 20,014
FIEFRF In the second to fifth years,
(RREERMF) inclusive 42,135 54,342
HEF# After five years 27,333 62,179
90,307 136,535
(b) EREE (b) Capital commitments
rEH
Group
—EEhE ZEENF
2009 2008
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
SHESEE 3 Contracted, but not provided for:
BE T AR R Acquisition of land use rights and
ME - WE NMERE property, plant and equipment 93,118 142,551
EEEYEE - BRE K& Construction of property, plant and
equipment 101,931 24,831
195,049 167,382
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34. A (&

() RFREHEMESH
RZZEZENF+A=+—HB K
SERBRARTERBINEEL:
AR—EAZE23EARN(=ZZTZ
NFE:—EBAZE+EAA)LE
928,000,000% 7t (=TT )\ F -
273,500,000 T ) A ER 4 A
R #6,275,873,0007T (ZF & )\
F: #) AR %1,869,263,0007T) °

35. RARAEE
RIBEFR  AEBK AL FEETA
BEAKABE-

36. BEALXRS
W& — S AN ERSMEEN S 7
SHEPBEREERRTEEARE
N RIETRBEERE-MEELR
Rl — 77 ¥ IR (E A BsE -

() FAEEFEREBABZHE

34.

35.

36.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
As at 31 December 2009, the Group had
commitments in respect of outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts to sell US$928,000,000 (2008:
US$273,500,000) for approximately RMB6,275,873,000
(2008: approximately RMB1,869,263,000) within periods
ranging from 1 month to 23 months (2008: from 1 month
to 10 months).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control.

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group

KEE

Group
—EEAF ZEENF
2009 2008
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000

EELaRERABME Remuneration of directors and

senior management 57,406 7,551

EREEFe 2 E—THBER
BT R MIES

Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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36. BEALXRZ (#) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) HEBEEALZXS (b)
7
BAMBRERAFHMZZ S5
NGB R Y R A T
THERRS :

Transactions with related parties

Continuing

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

rE
Group
—EEhEF —ZETNF
2009 2008
AR TR ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEMNEEHE Lease of property, plant and equipment
Y- WE k& from Shenzhou Properties * 7,262 7,262
REE = AR IR R
HEFRAF] Purchase of steam supply from Ningbo
([ARRET]) =~ Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power
HEZ#E A Co., Ltd. (“Mingyao Electric Company”) ** 32,321 44,322
TR BN KB & A
BRRAA Processing services provided by Ningbo
(TR~ Shenzhou Dagang Knitwear Co., Ltd.
R 2 T iR (“Shenzhou Dagang”) * 11,393 9,739
MAREEEF K F  Purchase of packing materials from Shaoxing
BRAA ([ZEF County Huaxi Packaging Materials
BERAA]) ™ Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging
KEEEYH Company”) *** 27,030 24,467
* BEMNEERBAMNRNBRARAE]— . Shenzhou Properties and Shenzhou Dagang are controlled

BAITE RS

by one of the Company’s executive directors.

> R EBRARNR —BRITES = Mingyao Electric Company is 48% owned by one of the
HHA8% M 7 © Company’s executive directors.
o EFEEEQARRAAABEP— **  Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of

BRTEE BB - one of the Company’s executive directors.
MEEATZRBERAEDREEBAR
RIAAEFEXPRME 2 ARER KGR
T

The purchases and lease from the related parties were made
according to the published prices and conditions offered by the
related companies to their major customers.
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36. BEAXLRE ()
(c) HEEEAL>&&
AEEMEHBEEATANTELX

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Balances with related parties
The Group had the following significant balances with its

R related parties:
AEE
Group
—EEhF —ZET)N\F
2009 2008
AR®B T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JETREE A T FIB Due to related parties — Trade related
—HE 55
EFHEEMA A Huaxi Packaging Company 2,058 214
HNE % Shenzhou Properties - 1,154
2,058 1,368

37. REHERSEE
RZZE—ZTE=ZA_+B KE£EK
BLELERIREETEERAR ([8
ITD100% e ZARKERERE
XB-KWBEBPR2BERBERARY
297,000,0007T * LAZR & & 1+ »

MREEI RSN BRRERATAE
BRI B REREABNE 2
ot 51 -

38. #it & M B R

Exen _T-THF-_A-_TtH#HLE
b 354 T 3% B M Sk o

37.

38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 20 March 2010, the Group acquired a 100% interest
in Shanghai Qungong Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(“Qungong”), which is engaged in the plant leasing. The
purchase consideration of RMB297,000,000 for the acquisition
was in the form of cash.

Because the acquisition of Qungong was effected shortly
before the date of approval of these financial statements, it is
not practicable to disclose further details about the acquisition.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2010.
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Financial Information Summary
(BREEFTREIN - FIESEAARETT)

AEERBEAMBHREMBEERFRAER
EFBFEZEAMEEUAREE BER
DR EREEEINMT

(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+t-A=+-BLEE /R+t=A=t+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

“EEAFE —TTNFE ZTTLF ZTTRF CZITTHF
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
AREBTRE AREBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E Results
KA Revenue 6,093,485  4,822596 3,655,613 2,979,530 2,482,984
BE B AR Finance costs (25,393) (51,417) (34,279) (15,081) (53,164)
JEMH—REEE A RIE4E  Share of results of
an associate - = = = (7)
B AT 45 2% B A1) B Profit before income tax 1,473,553 757,420 401,736 409,247 355,774
Fri3fi X Income tax expense (220,439) 56,968 6,352 (19,001) (2,429)
FE Profit for the year 1,253,114 700,452 408,088 390,246 353,345
AT ALTREMEER: Attributable to:
[SNE7SF =N Equity holders of
the parent 1,252,030 699,380 406,882 389,031 351,487
YRR ER Minority Interests 1,084 1,072 1,206 1,215 1,858
1,253,114 700,452 408,088 390,246 353,345
BEE B8ER Assets, Liabilities and
DERRER Minority Interests
BWEE Total assets 5,427,229 4,321 251 3,903,920 2,793,706 2,540,541
BEE Total liabilities (1,531,533)  (1,448,278)  (1,423,288) (719,390) (826,367)
DHRREER Minority Interests (13,201) (12,586) (11,514) (12,514) (12,152)
3,882,495 2,860,387 2,469,118 2,061,802 1,702,022
Ms: AEERE-—ST \ER-_ZEEAE+— Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years

A=t-BUMBAEEEF2RA%E.
MERR-BENER-FEAST-A
St-RZBARE BEROBBERS
THRH B REFSHEFI71H -
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ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 and the consolidated assets,
liabilities and minority interests of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and 2009 are those set out on pages 68 to 171 of the financial
statements.
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